EMAMI FRANK ROSS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To

The Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 105th Annual Report of your Company
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023.

The Directors are pleased to share with you that your Company has maintained sustainable
growth and earned cash profit in the financial year 2022-23.

FINANCIAL RESULTS Rs. In lakhs
PARTICULARS Standalone Consolidated
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Profit/(Loss) before
Depreciation, Tax & 1111.35 2479.19 1112.31 1573.70

exceptional items

Less/(Add): Depreciation 1770.34 2031.75 1770.34 2031.75

Profit/(Loss) before Tax & (658.99) 447.44 (658.03) (458.05)
exceptional items

Exceptional Items - 0.00 - 0.00

Profit /(Loss) before (658.99) 447.44 (658.03) (458.05)
exceptional items and tax

Less: Provision for Taxation

Deferred Tax (264.93) (85.16) (264.93) (85.16)
- 0.00 - 0.00

Wealth Tax

(Excess)/Short Provision of - 0.05 - 0.05

Earlier years

Profit/(Loss) for the year (394.06) 532.55 (393.10) (372.95)




Total Comprehensive
Income for the year (399.77) 547.46 (398.81) (358.03)

Credit Balance Brought
Forward (6314.99) (6862.42) (6278.74) (5920.68)

Adjustment to Equity - - - -

Fund available for (6714.80) (6314.99) (6677.69) (6278.74)
appropriation

Balance Carried to Balance (6714.80) (6314.99) (6677.69) (6278.74)
Sheet

The Company has prepared the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2023 in terms of Section 129, 133 and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 (as
amended) (the “Act”) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Emami Frank Ross Limited is one of Eastern India’s largest and oldest pharmacy chain with
retail stores operation in West Bengal, Odisha, Assam, Raipur (Chhattisgarh), Tripura, Bihar,
Karnataka and Tamil Nadu. Emami Frank Ross Ltd has also initiated e-commerce pharmacy
business, currently running in Kolkata and nearby districts with the vision to serve the
entire Eastern India and Karnataka in near future.

Apart from just pharma, Emami Frank Ross Ltd also deals in several other product
categories including medical devices, personal care, baby care, health food & drinks, sexual
wellness, ayurvedic, herbal and natural products. The Company’s private label brand
“ROSSCARE” has already introduced more than 250 sku’s in the pharma and non-pharma
categories and many of these products have been successfully launched.

BUSINESS REVIEW/STATE OF COMPANY’S OPERATIONS AND INDUSTRY
SCENARIO

The Company runs pharmacy in name and style of “Frank Ross Pharmacy” and leisure
business of books, media, toys and stationery in the name of “Starmark” having retail
outlets in Kolkata at South City, Mani Square, City Centre, Quest Mall.

The Company has shown considerable improvement in turnover which stands at Rupees
551 Crores for the year ended 31.03.2023 as against Rupees 496 Crores in the previous year
recording a growth of 11%.

Frank Ross pharmacy is planning to aggressively open new branches and doctor’s chambers
in greater Kolkata and in district town of West Bengal as well as in the neighbouring States



of Bihar, Odisha, Chhattisgarh, North East etc. The Company has also started giving
‘Franchise’ rights to various parties in all the above States.

Medicine spending in India is projected to grow 9-12% over the next five years, leading
India to become one of the top 10 countries in terms of medicine spending. Going forward,
better growth in domestic sales would also depend on the ability of companies to align their
product portfolio towards chronic therapies for diseases such as cardiovascular, anti-
diabetes, anti-depressants and anti-cancers, which are on the rise.

The Indian Government has taken many steps to reduce costs and bring down healthcare
expenses. Speedy introduction of generic drugs into the market has remained in focus and is
expected to benefit the Indian pharmaceutical companies. In addition, the thrust on rural
health programs, lifesaving drugs and preventive vaccines also augurs well for the
pharmaceutical companies.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY, BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of
the Company, between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) read with Section 134(3)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act") with respect to Directors" Responsibility Statement, it is hereby
confirmed that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures
from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and of the loss of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;



e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Not Applicable to this Company

DIVIDEND
The directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year 2022-2023 in view
of carried forward losses.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
The Company is not transferring any amount to General Reserve due to inadequacy of
profits during the financial year 2022-23.

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Pursuant to Sections 13, 61 and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any Statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force), read with Companies
(Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any and in
accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company, with the consent of the members at the EGM held on 31st
January,2023 the existing Authorized Share Capital of the Company was re-classified from
Rs. 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crores only) divided into 38,00,000 (Thirty Eight Lakhs)
equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each and 8,20,000 (Eight Lakhs Twenty Thousands)
Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees Hundred) each, to
58,00,000 (Fifty Eight Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) aggregating Rs.
5,80,00,000/- (Rupees Five Crores Eighty Lakhs only) each and 6,20,000 (Non-Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each aggregating to Rs. 6,20,00,000 (Rupees Six
Crores Twenty Lakhs only).

CREDIT RATING
Care Edge Ratings has reaffirmed the credit rating of *“BBB*; Stable for the bank facilities,
short term/ long term borrowings and commercial paper programs of the Company.

India Ratings and Research has affirmed the credit Ratings *IND A-/Stable for the Long term
loan, Fund basis limits and Non-Convertible Debentures.

SUBSIDIARIES/ JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATES

In compliance with Ind AS 110, Your Company has prepared Consolidated Financial
Statements, which forms part of this Annual Report. Further pursuant to Section 129(3) of
the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the financial statements of the
Subsidiary in the prescribed Form AOC 1 is enclosed in Annexure I and forms part of this
report.

The Company does not have any Associate Company and Joint Venture,



DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year, following were the Directors/KMPs

1.Mr. Gautam Jatia: Managing Director

2. Mr. Amit Kumar Agarwal: Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 19 January, 2023)
2.Mr. Bimal Agarwal: Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 29th April,2023)

3.Ms. Amrita Bhattacharya: Company Secretary & Compliance Officer.

DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT/CHANGES:

a. Retirement by rotation and reappointment of Whole-time director

The Consent of Shareholders is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for
continuation of holding of office by Mr. Gautam Jatia, Managing Director of the Company
who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for reappointment. Your directors
recommend his reappointment.

b. Retirement by rotation and reappointment of whole-time director

The Consent of Shareholders is being sought at the ensuing Annual General Meeting for
continuation of holding of office by Mrs. Mrs. Chadaravalli Srinivasabhatta Nalini, Whole
Time Director of the Company who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself for
reappointment. Your directors recommend his reappointment.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors confirming that
they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and
under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified under
the Act and Listing Regulations and are independent of the management. The Board skill/
expertise/ competencies matrix of all the Directors, including the Independent Directors is
provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has put in place a Familiarisation Programme for the Independent Directors
to familiarise them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company,
nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model etc. The details of the
Familiarisation Programme conducted are available on the website of the Company: https://
www.frankrosspharmacy.com

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND
INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

During the year, annual performance evaluation of the Board and Committees of the Board,
individual Directors including the Chairman of the Company, was carried out as per the
criteria and process approved by Nomination and Remuneration Committee, which is in
line with the SEBI Guidance Note on Board Evaluation.



The Chairman and other members of the Board discussed upon the performance evaluation
outcome and concluded that they were satisfied with the overall performance of the Board
and Committees of the Board and Directors individually.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 a
separate meeting of the independent Directors of the Company was held on 14* November,
2022 to review the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole.
The independent Directors also reviewed the quality, content and timeliness of flow of

information between the Management and the Board and its committees.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND THE RULES MADE THEREUNDER:

employees on the rolls of
company

S.No. | Particulars Name of the Directors and | Ratio
KMP (s)

(). The ratio of the remuneration of | Mr. Gautam Jatia 8%
each director to the median Mr. Anurag Jatia 10%
remuneration of the employees | Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj 10%
of the company for the financial | Mrs. Chadaravalli 10%
year Srinivasa Bhatta Nalini

(ii). *Percentage increase in Mr. Gautam Jatia — 8%
remuneration of each director Managing Director& CEO
and CEO, CFO & CSin the Mr. Anurag Jatia— Whole | 10%
financial year Time Director

Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj — 10%
Whole time Director

Mrs. Chadaravalli 10%
Srinivasabhatta Nalini —

Whole Time Director

Mr. Amit Kumar Agarwal | NA
— Chief Financial Officer
(Resigned w.e.f. 19t

January, 2023)

Ms. Amrita Bhattacharya-
Company Secretary 28%

(iii) | Increment of employees in the Total increment of 15030
financial year (Median employees other than
Remuneration) managerial personnel

(iv) Number of permanent Confirmed Employees 1846




v) *Average percentile increase in - 6.45%
the salaries of employees other
than the managerial personnel

(vi) Affirmation The Board affirms that the -
remuneration is as per the
remuneration policy of the
company

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 (14) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:
The Managing Director or Whole-Time Director(s) of the Company were not in receipt of
any remuneration or commission from the Company's Holding or Subsidiary companies
during the financial year.

EMPLOYEES AND OTHER REPORT

None of the employee is in receipt of remuneration in excess of amount as prescribed in the
Rule No. 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014.

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
OTHER EMPLOYEES AND CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

For the purpose of selection of any Director, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
identifies persons of integrity who possess relevant expertise, experience and leadership
qualities required for the position. The Committee also ensures that the incumbent fulfils
such criteria with regard to qualifications, positive attributes, independence, age and other
criteria as laid down under the Act, Listing Regulations or other applicable laws. The Board
has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a
Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel.

The complete Policy as approved by the Board is available on the website of the Company
and can be accessed through the web link: https:// www.frankrosspharmacy.com
Information as per Section 197 (12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in
‘Annexure - A" to this Report. Further, the information pertaining to Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
pertaining to the names and other particulars of employees is available for inspection at the
Registered office of the Company during business hours and pursuant to the second proviso
to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Report and the accounts are being sent to the members
excluding this. Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer either at the Registered/ Corporate Office address
or by email to info@frankrosspharmacy.com

BOARD MEETINGS
Board meetings were held during the financial year 2022-23 on the following dates:
SLNo. Date of the meeting No. of Directors attended the
meeting
1 19.04.2022 7



mailto:info@frankrosspharmacy.com

2 30.06.2022 6
3 23.08.2022 7
4 14.11.2022 7
5 21.12.2022 7
6 14.02.2023 7

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Audit Committee

The Board has formed the audit committee vide its meeting dated 30.05.2014 and thereafter
due to change in directorship the Audit Committee has also been reconstituted on 25.07.2014.
As on 31 March, 2023 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah (Chairman), Mr. Anurag Jatia, & Mr.
Debasish Bhaumik are members of the Audit Committee. All the members of the Audit
Committee are financially literate. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent (Non-
Executive) Director, nominated by the Board. The company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are circulated to the Board,
discussed and taken note at the Audit Committee meetings. All recommendations made by
the Audit Committee during the year was accepted by the Board.

At least one meeting of the Audit Committee was held in every quarter of the financial year
ended March 31+, 2023 and the time gap between any two consecutive meetings of the Audit
Committee did not exceed 120 days. During the financial year from 1%t April, 2022 to 31
March, 2023, 5 (Five) Audit Committee Meetings were held on the following dates:

SL. Date of the meeting No. of Members attended the
No. Audit Committee meeting
1 19.04.2022 3
2 23.08.2022 3
3 14.11.2022 3
4 21.12.2022 3
5 14.02.2023 3

The detailed composition and attendance of the members of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

SL Name of the directors Position No. of meetings
No. attended

1 Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Chairman 5

2 Mr. Anurag Jatia Member 5

3 Mr. Debasish Bhaumik Member 5

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Company's Policy on Directors'
Appointment and Remuneration

The Board of directors of the Company had constituted a Nomination and Remuneration
Committee in terms of the requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act read with Rule



7 of companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014 Act and Rules framed
thereunder read with Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations. Further, The Board has
reconstituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee which as on date of 31st March,
2023 comprises of Mr. Debasish Bhaumik (Chairman), Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah & Mrs. Karabi
Sengupta as the members of the Committee. The Committee has formulated the policy with
respect to remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

During the year ended 31.03.2023, 3 (Three) meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee were held on 19* April, 2022, 234 August, 2022 and 14* November, 2022.

The detailed composition and attendance of the members of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Sl. No. | Name of the directors Position No. of meetings
attended
1 Mr. Debasish Bhaumik Chairman 3
2 Mr. Pramod Kumar Member 3
Shah
3 Mrs. Karabi Sengupta* Member 3

* Appointed as a member w.e.f. 19 October, 2020

The policy is laid down as follows:

I.  The Nomination and Remuneration committee shall identify persons who are
qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid, recommend to the Board their appointment and
removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance.

II. The Nomination and remuneration committee shall formulate the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the directors, key
managerial personnel and other employees.

III. At the time of appointment or reappointment, the Managing Director, other Whole
Time Directors or Key Managerial Personnel shall be paid such remuneration as may
be agreed mutually between the company (which includes the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors) and the Managing Director,
other Whole Time Directors or Key Managerial Personnel which should be within the
overall limits prescribed as per Companies Act, 2013.

IV.  The Remuneration shall be subject to the approval of Members of the Company in
General Meeting if it falls under the criteria of Schedule V of the Companies Act.

V.  In determining Remuneration, the Committee shall consider the following:

a. The level & composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract and
motivate Managing Director, other Whole Time Directors or Key Managerial
Personnel.



b. Relationship of remuneration & performance benchmark is clear.

c. Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term
performance objectives appropriate to time working of the company and its goals.

Share Transfer Committee

The Board has formed the Share Transfer Committee at its meeting held on 14.08.2017. As on
31t March, 2023 Mr. Debashis Bhaumik (Chairman), Mr. Gautam Jatia, & Mr. Anurag Jatia are
members of the Share Transfer Committee.

1 (One) Share Transfer Committee Meeting was held 14* February, 2023 during the financial
year from 1t April, 2022 to 31 March, 2023.

The composition of the Share Transfer Committee and attendance of its members is as follows:

SL Name of the directors Position No. of meetings attended
No.

1 Mr. Debasish Bhowmik$ Chairman

2 Mr. Gautam Jatia Member

4 Mr. Anurag Jatia Member

$ Inducted as a member w.e.f. 31 July, 2020 and become Chairman w.e.f. 26
August, 2020

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The particulars of material contracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with
Related Parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Act in Form AOC-2 prescribed under the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are appended as “Annexure II-*” hereto and forms part
of this Report.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has a well-established internal financial controls framework, which is
designed to continuously assess the adequacy, effectiveness and efficiency of internal
financial controls. The management is committed to ensuring an effective internal financial
controls environment, commensurate with the size and complexity of the business, which
provides an assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

The Company has proper internal control procedures commensurate with its size and nature
of Business. During the year the Company has appointed Saraf & Chandra LLP, Chartered
Accountants (FRN¥) as Internal Auditors and also to perform professional services towards
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company has developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy, which identifies
major risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been

10



adopted by Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process
and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelt out in the said policy which is
available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the web link:
http://www .frankrosspharmacy.com.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY/ VIGIL MECHANISM

To create enduring value for all stakeholders and ensure the highest level of honesty,
integrity and ethical behaviour in all its operations, the Company has adopted a “Whistle
Blower Policy" which is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed
through the web link: http://www .frankrosspharmacy.com.

AUDIT AND AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the Annual General Meeting held on 30th September, 2019, M/s. M/S Agrawal Tondon &
Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 329088E) were appointed as Statutory Auditor of the
Company for the term of 5 consecutive years subject to ratification of the Members annually.

In view of the amendment made to Section 139 of the Act vide the Companies (Amendment)
Act, 2017 which is effective from 7th May, 2018, annual ratification of appointment of
statutory auditors is no more necessary. Accordingly, M/S Agrawal Tondon & Co.,
(FRN:329088E) Chartered Accountants, shall continue to be the Statutory Auditors of the
Company till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2024 and
their appointment shall not be subject to ratification by the Members annually.

A certificate under section 141 of the companies Act, 2013 has been received form M/S
Agrawal Tondon & Co Associates to the effect that they are eligible to be appointed as
Statutory Auditors of the company.

The reports given by the Auditors on the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 forms part of this Annual Report and there is no
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their
Reports. The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud in terms of the second
proviso to Section 143(12) of the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rules made
thereunder & other applicable provisions if any, the Company has appointed Arun Kumar
Maitra & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries vide ICSI Unique Code P2015WB086500, as its
Secretarial Auditor to undertake Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year Ending 31.03.2023.
The Secretarial Auditor’s Report for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2023 is attached, which is
self-explanatory (Annexure III).

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The CSR Policy of the Company was approved at the Board meeting held on 29.04.2023 and
it is available on the website of the Company and can be accessed through the web link:
http://www frankrosspharmacy.com.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

Your directors would like to take this opportunity to express their gratitude and
appreciation for the passion, dedication and commitment of the employees and look
forward to their continued contribution.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company strongly believes in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for each
and every individual working for the Company through various interventions and practices.
It is the continuous endeavour of the Management of the Company to create and provide an
environment to all its employees that is free from discrimination and harassment including
sexual harassment. The Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibition and
redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and
the Rules made thereunder.

The Company has submitted the Annual Returns to the local authorities, as required under
the above-mentioned Act.

Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Corporate Governance Report is not Applicable to this Company

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards as amended from time
to time.

LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENTS

In terms of Section 186 of the Companies Act and Rules framed thereunder, details of the
loans given and investments made by the Company have been disclosed as notes to

accounts of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023 which forms part of
the Annual Report.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS/DEBENTURES

The Board of Directors has duly issued, offered and alloted on preferential basis 14800
(Fourteen Thousand Eight Hundred) Zero Coupon Un-Secured Optionally Convertible
Debentures (“OCDs”) @ Rs. 1,00,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Only) each for cash for an
aggregate amount of Rs. 148,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred and Forty-Eight Crores only)
to M/s Suraj Finvest Pvt Ltd, M/s Sneha Enclave Private Limited and M/s Deevee
Commercials (hereinafter referred to as the “Debenture holders”), in lieu of and against the
conversion of loan or Advance of Rs. 148 Crores (Rupees One Hundred and Forty-Eight
Crores) received from them.

The Company allotted 150 unlisted senior secured redeemable non-convertible bonds having
face value of ¥ 1,00,00,000/- each aggregating to ¥ 150,00,00,000/- on private placement basis
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out of which 25% of issue amount i.e. ¥ 37,50,00,000 was redeemed with the payment of
interest at 12 percent per annum during the financial year 2020-2021. The balance amount i.e.
% 112,50,00,000/- has been redeemed on 06t June 2023.

PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OF EQUITY SHARES:

The Company has created, issued and allotted on preferential basis (“Preferential Issue”)
maximum of Rs. 2,00,00,000/-(Two Crores) equity capital i.e. 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakhs)
equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/-(Rupees Ten) each, upon the conversion of unsecured
loan of Rs. 2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores Only) outstanding as on date in the name of the
Proposed Allottees i.e. Suraj Finvest Private Limited and Sneha Enclave Private Limited.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted any deposit from the Public during the year under review.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information pursuant to Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, related to conservation of energy and technology
absorption are not applicable to the Company as there has been no manufacturing activity.

Details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Foreign exchange earned during the year : NIL
Foreign exchange used during the year : NIL
Purchase (Imports) : NIL

Product Listing : NIL

Travelling (Boarding & Lodging) : NIL

Total : NIL

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals,
which impact the going concern status.

BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year 2022-23
under review.

ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return as required under sub-section (3) of Section 92 of the Companies Act,
2013 (‘the Act") in form MGT-7 will be available on the website of the Company and can be
accessed at http://www frankrosspharmacy.com.

ACKNOLEDGEMENT

The directors wish to convey their appreciation to all the employees for their enormous
personal efforts as well as their collective contribution to the company’s performance. The
directors would also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and all
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other business associates for the continuous support given by them to the company and
their confidence in its management.

For and On behalf of the Board

SD/-

Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Whole time Director
(DIN 00604926) (DIN 08818352)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26th July, 2023
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Annexure I
Form No. AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate

Companies/Joint Ventures

Subsidiary Details as on- 31.03.2023

(Rupees in Lakhs)
No. Particulars Details

1 Name of Subsidiary Lyfresh Private Limited

2 Date since when the Subsidiary was acquired 11.07.2017

3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if NA

different from the holding company’s reporting
period
4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the NA
last date of the relevant Financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries

5 Share capital 600.00

6 Reserves & surplus (599.12)

7 Total assets 2.59

8 Total Liabilities 1.71

9 Investments -

10 Turnover 2.07

11 Profit before taxation 0.95

12 Provision for taxation -

13 Profit after taxation 0.95

14 Proposed Dividend -

15 % of shareholding of Holding Company 100%
For and on behalf of the Board
SD/-
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Whole time Director
(DIN 00604926) (DIN 08818352)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26t July, 2023




Annexure I1

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into
by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions not at arm’s length basis

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship NA
Nature of contracts /arrangements /transactions NA
Duration of the contracts / arrangements /transactions NA
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any NA
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NA
date(s) of approval by the Board NA
Amount paid as advances, if any: NA
Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section | NA

188




2A. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

with Director(s)/Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and Relatives

Description Particulars
Name of the related party and nature of relationship NIL
Nature of Contracts / arrangements/transactions NIL
Duration of the contracts/arrangements/ transactions NIL
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any NIL
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NIL
date(s) of approval by the Board NIL
Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under NIL

first proviso to section 188

2B. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis with

Other Parties

Description

@

)

©)

Name(s) of the related party
and nature of relationship

Suraj Finvest Pvt.Ltd. (Formerly Known

as Sneha Gardens Pvt. Ltd.)

Diwakar Finvest Pvt. Ltd (Formerly
known as Sneha Enclave Pvt. Ltd.)

Midkot Investment Private Limited

Nature of contracts
/arrangements /transactions

Guarantor against the Bank Loan,

Debentures/Bonds

Guarantor against the Bank Loan,
Debentures/Bonds

Guarantor against the Debentures /Bonds

Duration of the contracts /
arrangements /transactions

Yearly

Yearly

Yearly

Salient terms of the contracts
or arrangements or
transactions including the
value, if any

Commission Paid to the party against
Guarantee provided for securing Bank
Loan and issue of Non-Convertible

Debentures/ Bonds

Commission Paid to the party
against Guarantee provided for
securing Bank Loan and issue of

Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds

Commission Paid to the party against
Guarantee provided for issue of Non-
Convertible Debentures/Bonds




Managing Director
(DIN 00604926)

Place: Kolkata
Date: 26t July, 2023

Justification for entering into For availing Loan from Banks and for For availing Loan from Banks and for For issue of Non-Convertible
such contracts or issue of Non-Convertible issue of Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds
arrangements or transactions Debentures/Bonds Debentures/Bonds
date(s) of approval by the 29t April, 2023 29t April, 2023 29t April, 2023
Board
Amount paid as advances, if No No No
any:
Date on which SR passed in NA NA NA
general meeting as required
under first proviso to Section
188
For and on behalf of the Board
SD/-
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj

Whole time Director
(DIN 08818352)
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FORM NO. MR - 3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31°'MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Emami Frank Ross Limited

7, Jawaharlal Nehru Road, Kolkata-700013, West Bengal

We have conducted Secretarial Audit of compliance with the applicable statutory provisions
and adherence to good corporate practices by Emami Frank Ross Limited
CIN:(U24232WB1919PLC003123 (hereinafter called ‘the Company’) for the Financial Year
ended SlStMarch, 2023. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing

our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books and papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, | hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering
the Financial Year ended 31StMarch, 2023 complied with statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books and papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year ended BlstMarch, 2023 according

to the provisions of:
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings — Not applicable for External Commercial Borrowings as there was no
reportable event during the financial year under review;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 —

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits)
Regulations, 2014— Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial
year under review; ;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 —

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client — Not
applicable as the Company is not registered as Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agent during the financial year under review;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year under
review;



ARUN KUMAR MAITRA & CO.
Practicing Company Secretaries
6/1, Merlin Park, Ballygunge Phari
Kolkata-700019

Ph. No.- 8420975192
E-mail:akmaitra83@gmail.com
ICSI Unique CodeP2015WB086500
Peer Review Certificate No. 1504/2021
Dated 24" September,2021

UDYAM REGISTRATION NUMBER
UDYAM-WB-10-0044251

PAN No- ABUFA9914A

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 —
Not applicable as there was no reportable event during the financial year under review;
and

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(vi) Management has identified and confirmed the following laws as being specifically
applicable to the Company:

(a). The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940;
(b). Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and Rules 2011 with allied rules and Regulations;
(c). Narcotic Drugs & Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General
Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

(i) Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc.
We further report that:

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors including a Woman Independent
Director. Changes in the composition of Board of Directors that took place during the year
under review, were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act, 2013
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(i) Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule Board Meetings; agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting;

(i) All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried through unanimously;

We further report that based on review of compliance mechanism established by the
Company and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s) issued by the Company Secretary
and taken on record by the Board of Directors at their meeting(s), we are of the opinion there
are adequate systems and processes in place in the Company which is commensurate with its
size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations

and guidelines; and

As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices received from various
statutory / regulatory authorities including initiating actions for corrective measures, wherever

found necessary.

We further report that during the financial year under review, following events/ actions having
a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., have occurred:

(a). The following proposals were approved by the shareholders by passing Special
Resolutions at their 104" annual general meeting held on 23 August,2022

(). Approval of the remuneration of Mr. Gautam Jatia (DIN: 00604926) Managing Director for
the remaining period of his tenure up to 26th August, 2023a Special Resolution:

(ii). Approval of the remuneration of Mr. Anurag Jatia (DIN: 01184328) Whole time Director for
remaining period of tenure up to 31st March 2024;

(iif). Approval of the remuneration of Mr. Sujoy Chattaraj (DIN: 08818352) Whole time Director
for remaining period of tenure up to 31st July 2023;

(iv). Approval of the remuneration of Mrs. Chadaravalli Srinivasabhatta Nalini (DIN: 06806913)
Whole time Director for the remaining period up to 30th September 2024;

(v). Approval for giving loan or guarantee or providing security in connection with loan availed
by any of the Company’s Directors, Subsidiary(ies) or any other person specified under section
185 of the Companies Act, 2013:er related party transaction of Mr. Rajendra Kumar Jatia u/s
188 of Companies Act, 2013;
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(vi). Approval for entering into Related Party Transactions;

(b). The following matters were approved by the shareholders by passing special
resolutions at the EGM held on 31 January,2023:

(). Alteration of Articles of Association of the Company;

(ii). Share capital: increase, reduction and re-classification;

(iii). Offer, issue and allotment of equity shares on preferential basis and

(iv). Issue of unsecured optionally convertible debenture

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and

forms an integral part of this report.

For Arun Kumar Maitra & Co.
Practicing Company Secretaries

SD/-

(ARUN KUMAR MAITRA)
Partner

Membership No. A3010
C.P. N0.14490

UDIN: A003010E000678080
Place: Kolkata

Date: 26/07/2023
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Annexure A
To,
The Members,
Emami Frank Ross Limited CIN:
Management’s Responsibility
1. It is the responsibility of management of the Company to maintain secretarial records,

devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

1. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and
procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

2. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management
is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

1. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted affairs of
the Company.

2. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

For Arun Kumar Maitra & Co.
Practicing Company Secretaries

SD/-

(ARUN KUMAR MAITRA)
Partner

Membership No. A3010
C.P. N0.14490

UDIN: A003010E000678080
Place: Kolkata

Date: 26/07/2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of EMAMI FRANK ROSS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of EMAMI FRANK
ROSS LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2023, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive
income, the standalone Statement of Cash Flow and the standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including a sumunary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting standards (*Ind AS”) prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Iindian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 3 1st March 2023, its losses including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and its changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.
Our responsibilities under those Standards arc further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31%
March, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinjon thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters,




We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report :

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

1) Identification and disclosures of
Related Parties (as described in Note
30 of the standalone Ind AS financiai
statements.

The Company has related party
transactions which include, amongst
others, sale and purchase of
goods/services to its related parties and
lending, investment and borrowing
to/from its related parties. [dentification
and disclosure of related parties was a
significant area of focus and hence
considered it as a Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures amongst others included the
following:

* Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of controls over identification and
disclosure of related party transactions.

* Obtained a list of related parties from the
Company’s management and traced the related
parties to declarations given by directors, where
applicable, and to Note 30 of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

* Read minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee and traced related
party transactions with limits approved by Audit
Committee / Board.,

* Read declarations of related party transactions
given to the Board of Directors and Audit
Committee.

+ Verified the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements for compliance with ind AS 24.




Key Audit Matters

Auditor's Response thereon

2) Existence and valuation of
Inventories.

As indicated in Note 9, the value of
the Company's inventories at
year-end was Rs. 8025.83 lakh,
representing 10.55% of the
Company's total assets. The
existence of inventory is a key
audit mafter due to the involvement
of high risk, basis the nature of the
retail industry wherein value per
unit is relatively insignificant but
high volumes are involved which
are distributed across different
Point of Sales and warehouses.

In response to this key matter, our audit included, among
others, the following principal audit procedures:-

e Understood Management's control over physical
inventory counts and valuation

s Evaluation of the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to
physical inventory counts at the stores and the
warehouse. In testing this conirol, we observed the
inventory cycle count process on a sample basis,
inspected the results of the inventory cycle count and
confirmed that the variances were approved and
appropriately accounted for.

o Evaluation of the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to
purchases, sales and inventories including automated
controls

® We have also performed roll-forward and alternate
procedures on sample basis for establishing the
existence of inventory as at year-end by validating
purchases, sales, stock movement of inventory
during the intervening period ie. from the date
physical verification was done till the year end date.

e For a representative sample, verification that the
finished goods inventories were correctly measured,
using a recalculation of the measurement of those
inventories based on the cost of acquiring them from
suppliers and considering the cosis directly
attributable to such goods.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder
Information but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial staternent that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,




We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maiters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
stgnificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure “B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;
{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of‘our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The standalone Balance Sheet, the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the standalone Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.




(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with
the requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us, the remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

.. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statement.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There has been no such sum which needs to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief;
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by
the company from any person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party




(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of'the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year nor in the
previous year.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trial (edit
log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from 1st April 2023, and
accordingly, reporting under rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

adhakrishan Tondon

Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534
Date: 30™ May,2023

UDIN: 23060534BGWXXK2009




ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Emami Frank Ross
Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31%, 2023 to the extent of records available with us in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2023, based on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentials components of the
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note").

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards




on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such conirols operated effectively in all
material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company:;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.




Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
irm’s Registration Number — 329088E

ot

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Membership No: (060534

Place: Kolkata
Date; 30% May, 2023
UDIN: 23060534BGWXXK2009




ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment:

(@) (A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets,

(b) The Company has a regular program of verification to cover all the items of
Property, Plant and Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are
held in the name ofthe Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
Right of Use assets) during the year ended 31% March, 2023.

(¢) There were no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of
1988) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the
coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate. No discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any point of time duringthe
year, the Company has been sanctioned working capital facility in excess of Rs 5 crores
from banks on the basis of security of current assets of the company. Based on the
records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the
monthly returns statements filed by the company with such banks are.in agreement with
the books of accounts of the company.

iiiy (a) During the year the company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security , granted



i) (a) During the year the company has made investments in, provided guarantee or security , granted
loans or advances in the nature of loans, unsecured, to companies or any other parties,

(A) There was no loans or advances and guarantees or security to subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates;

(B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date
with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees or security to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates;

(In Lacs)
Loans
Aggregate amount of loan provided during
the year
- Others 25,444.00
Balance outstanding as at Balance Sheet date
in respect of above
- Others 4,65,06.57

(a) During the year, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in
the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s
interest.

(b) In respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans, are repayable on
demand and hence, no schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated.

(c) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans
given to above parties.

(d) In respect of any loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen due
during the year, the loan or advance in the nature of loan has neither been renewed
nor extended nor any fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

(¢) The loans or advances in the nature of loans granted by the company are repayable
on demand. The details of which is as follows:

Following loans have been granted that are repayable on demand. | (In Lacs)
Type of borrower Asat 31.03.2023
Amount of loan or advance in nature | Percentage to the total Loans and
of loan outstanding Advances in nature of loans
Promoters 0
Directors 0 =
KMPs 0 oMo\
Related parties 0 //é,sv/ﬁ [\\%\\
Others 4,65,06.57 100% “,‘; Kol ) 5

0"
Lrog Ac?a“‘\’

e




V)

vi)

vii)

viii)

iX)ix)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in
respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security, provisions of sections 185 and 186
of the Companies Act have been complied with .

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed tobe
deposits during the year within the meaning of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act,
2013.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to maintain cost records prescribed by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and
Service Tax, Cess and other material Statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities and no undisputed dues are in arrears as at March 31, 2023
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise
which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no transactions
relating 1o previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks,
financial institutions and government during the year. Hence, reporting under
clause (ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not been declared wiiful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other Jender;

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has utilized the loan
amount taken during the year for intended purpose and there is no unutilized term loan at
the beginning of the year.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
o1l short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the-ear for long-term
purposes by the Company.,




Xi)

Xii)

xiit)

Xiv)

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiary, as defined under the Act.

(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its Subsidiary.

(a) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not made any public offer during the year,

(b) During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of shares and optionally
convertible debentures and the requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the purposes for
which the funds were raised.

(2) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to
the information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the
audit,

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of
the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed nnder rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during
the year and up to the date of this report.

(¢) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there were no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by
the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) (a) to {c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Indian accounting standards.

(a) The Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent
of our audit procedures.




XV)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them as referred to in
Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) ofthe Order is not
applicable.

Xvi)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the
Company.

{(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly, the requirement to repoit on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group has two CICs as part of the Group.

xvii) The company has not incurred any cash losses in the financial vear and in the
immediately preceding financial year;

xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year;

xix)  Onthe basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans,
we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date;

xx)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the compliance with second proviso to
sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the
company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

(] telaiston Foroler

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534

Date: 30" May, 2023
UDIN: 23060534BGWXXK2009




Emami Frank Ross Ltd

Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2023

Rs in Lakhg
Asat As at
Particulars Notes
31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 4,003.12 4,085.42
b) Capital work-in-progress 21 11.41 67.46
c) Other Intangible Assets 22 283.97 7297
d} Right of Use Assets 23 4/455.26 2,242.60
g) Intangible Assets under Development 2.2 - 189.96
£) Financial asseis
(i} Investments 3 693.28 702.20
(if) Other Financial Assets & | 1,221.16 1,046.80
g) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 3,560:91 3,293.43
h) Other non-current assets B 236.43 223.05
Total Non Current Assets ‘14,465.54 11,923.59
CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 9 8,025.83 6,983.96
b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivable 5 5,966.31 4,969.37
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 10 768.97 579.43
(iii) Loans 4 46,506.53 19,431.35
{iv) Other Financial Assets 11 - =
c) Other current assets 12 367.07 | 254.67
Total Current Assets 61,634.76 32,218.78
TOTAL ASSETS 76,100.3¢G | 44,142.67
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 13 208.27 208.27
b) Other Equity 14 (6,714.80) (6.314.99)
Total Equity (6,306.53) (6,106.72)
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 15 36,396.03 22,966.61
{iXa) Lease Liabilities 15 3,779.48 1,889.61
(i)  Other Financial Liabilities 16 2418 2347
Total Non Current Liabilities 40,199.6% 24,879.69
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 34,905.67 20,890.37
(i)(a) Lease Liabilities i5 1,097.51 745.29
(i} Trade payables 18
Total cutstanding dues of Micro enterprises
(a) and small enterprises 43.53 43,99
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
) Micro enterprises and small enterprises goou &e7e3Ta
{iif) Other Financial Liabilities 19 746.15 732,84
b} Other current liabilities 20 43,77 121.66
) Provisions 17 31213 266.80
Total Current Liabilifies 4220734 25,369.70
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 76,100.30 | 44,142 67

$lgnlficant accounting polices

Ih ferms of our attached report of even dale
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E

SD/-

Radhakiishan Tondon
Pariner

Membership NO. 040534

Dated : 30-05-2023
Place : Kolkata

For & on behalf of Board of Direcfors

Svjoy Chattaraf
Diractor
DIN - 08818352

sp/- so/-
Gautam Jaila
Managing Dlrecior
DIN - 00404926
sD/-

Bimal Kr Agarwal

Chief Financlal Officer

50/-

Amiita Bhottacharya
Company Secretary

Membership No.- AS3270




Emami Frank Rogs Lid
Statement of Profit & Loss

For the year ended 31st March 2023

Rs in Lakhs
Year ended 31st Year ended 31st
L, Notes | March 2023 March 2022
I |Revenue from Operations 21 55,164.01 49,681.02
I |Other Income 22 4,480.37 5919.16
II |Total Income (I+IT) 59,644.38 55,600.18
IV |Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 44,364,57 37,771.11
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 (1,041.87) 950.42
Employee Benefits Expense 24 5464.383 4,783.84
Finance Costs 6,493.26 7,034.83
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 1,770.34 2,031.75
Other Expenses 26 3,252.69 2,580.79
Total Expenses (IV) 60,303.37 55,152.74
V  |Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (ITI-IV) (658.99) 447 44
VI |Tax Expense:
Tax relating to earlier years 1.66 0.05
Deferred Tax 7 (266.59) (85.16}
VII | Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (394.06) 532.55
VIII | Other Comprehensive Income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
i |Fair value changes in Equity instrument (8.93) (13.60)
i |Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - 36.94
iii |Income Tax relating to above 322 (8.43)
Other Comprehensive income net of tax (5.71) 14.91
IX Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) {399.77) 547.46
Earnings per equity share
i |Basic (Face value Rs. 10/~ each) (16.92} 25,57
ii |Diluted (Face value Rs. 10/- each) {16.92) 2557

Signiflcant accounting polices

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financicl statements

In terms of our altached report of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co,

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E

Sn/-

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

Membership NQ. 060534

Dated : 30-05-2023
Place : Kolkata

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

SD/- Sb/-
Gavulam Jatla Sufoy Chattaraj
Managing Direcfor Director
DIN - 00404926 DIN - 08818352

S$D/-
Bimal Kr Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

sD/-
Amrita Ehatlacharya
Company Secrelary
Membership No.- A53270



Emami Frank Ross Lid
Cash Flow statement

For the year ended 31st-March-2023

A Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before tax

Adjustments for :-

Depreciation and amertisation expense

Dividend

Finance costs

Interest income

Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances Written Back
Profit/(loss) on sale /f{disposal) of property, Plant &
equipment (net)

Lease Payments
Non Cash items
Adfustments for working capitael changes

Increase/{Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities

{Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
{Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables
{Increase}/ Decrease in Loans and Advances and other

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions
Cash generated from opreation

Less:- Direct Taxes paid/ (refund received)-Net
Net Cash flow from opearting acHvities

B Cash flow from Investing activities

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment
Interest received
Dividend
Purchase of Property,Plant & Equipment
Investment in Optionally Convertible Debentures
Leans (given)/ repayment received from Subsidiary
company
Leans {given}/ repayment received from cthers
Fixed deposit made

Net cash flow from ( used ) investing activities

C Cash flow from Financing activities
Repayment of Borrowings
Issue/ (redemption} of Non Convertible Debentures

Proceeds from borrowings
Interest Including Borrowing costs

Cash credit taken/ (repaid) {net)
Net cash flow from { used ) finaucing wctivities

Net increase /(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Add:- Cash & Cash Equivalents -Opening balance
Cash & cash equivalents -Closing balance

Rs in Lakhs
2022-23 2021-22

{658.99) 44743
1,770.35 203174
(0.50) {0.80)
6,493.25 7.034.95
(3,749.24) (5,408.69)
- (32.00)
(L.73) {452.36)
(?520.85) (1,311.45)
- 80.49
1,341.99 2,389.32
2,321.51 (272.35)
(1,041.87) 95042
(996.94) (1,198.02)
1300.14} 191.79
45.32 o412
2758 (234.06)
1.369.87 2,155.26
(5.12) (54.03)
136476 2,101.23
1.3z 828.56
94.76 1,510.89
.80 0.80

- (868.93)

- (425.00)

- 32.00
{23,518.75) 28,526.40
{0.53) 3224
(23,422.40) 29,836.96
(7,506.57) (43,688.10)

10,500.00 -

25,747.00 19,241.00
{6,493.25) (7,307.00)
- (96.79}
22,247.18 (31,850.89)
189.53 87.29
57943 49214
768.97 579.43

Notfes:-
(a) The abave cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method” as set out in the Indian
@ Particulars A} 1 “tf,gt Ag at 315t March'22
Cash & cash equivalents includes:-
Cash in hand 118.48 132.52
-Current account 647.31 437.80
Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest accred] 318 911
Cash & Cash Equivalents in Cash Flow Statement 768.97 57943
Significant accountlg pollces
The accontpanylog nobes an: s integral part of these financial ststements
In terma of onr attached report of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329084F sD/- B/~
Gautam Jata Sujoy Chattaaj
Managing Director Divector
DIN - 00602926 DIN- 08818352
D/~
Blmal Kr Agaswal
3D/~ Chief Financial Officer
Radhakrishan Tondan
Partoer
Membership NO, 06053 sn/-
Amrita Bhattacharya
Diated  30-05-2023 Company Secretary



A Equity Share Capital

1

Emami Frank Ross Ltd

Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31st March, 2023

Current reporting period (2022-23)

Rs in Lakhs

. .. | Restated balance at |Changes in equity
o = . Changes in Equity - N Balance at the end of
Balance at the begmmng. of the current reporting Share Capital dueto the beginning of shar? capital the current reporting
period rior period errors e orarent greingithe eriod
P P reporting period current year P
208.27 200.00 408.27
Previous reporting period (2021-22)
F ... | Restated balance at | Changes in equity
O . Changes in Equity pini . Balance at the end of
Balance at the begmm.ng. of the current reporting Share Capital dueta the beginning of sharc'e capital the current reporting
period rior period errors the current during the eriod
P F reporting period current year perio
208.27 208,27
Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income
Particalars Equity Remeasurement of Total
Retained Earnings | General Reserve Instruments Defined Benefit Equity
through OCI Plans
Balance at 31-03-21 {9,179.39) 2,124.67 160.74 3156 | (6,862.42)
Total Comprehensive Income for the financial year
2021-22
Fair value changes in Equity instrument = - (13.60) - (13.60)
Tax Effect on above = & {0.74) - (0.74)
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation 3 - = 36.94 36.94
Tax Effect on above 5 0 = {7.69) (7.69}
Profit/ (loss) for the year 332,52 - - - 532.52
Balance at 31-03-22 (8,646.87) 2,124.67 146.40 60.81 (6,314.99)
Balance as on 01.04.2022 (8,646.87) 2124 67 146.40 60.81 (6,314.99)
Fair value changes in Equity instrument (8.93) (8.93)
Tax Effect on above 322 3.22
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation - -
Tax Effect on above 0.00 0.00
Profit/(loss) for the year (394.09) - - - (394.09)
Balance at 31-03-23 (9,040.96) 2,124.67 140.69 60.81 (6,714.80)
Significant accounting polices
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
in terms of cur attached report of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329088E 5D/ sD/-
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Director
DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352
5Dy-

Bimal Kr Agarwal
$Dy- Chief Financial Officer
Radhakrishan Tondon
Pariner
Membership NO. 060534 sp/-

Amrita Bhattacharya
Dated : 30-05-2023 Company Secrefary

Place : Kolkata

Membership No.- A53270
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Notes o Financial Stafements

3 Non Current Investments Rs in Lakhs
31
Particolars Hst March, 2023 31st March, 2022
A Investments carried at Cost
1 Investment in Equity Instruments {(Unguoted)
i Subsidiary
i Lyfresh Pyt Ltd
6000000 Equity Shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up 600.00 60000
Lesg- Provisien for diminution in valee of investment {600.00) - 600.00] -
H Others
a Medico Assocation #
12 Shares™ 042 C.42
Less:- Provision for diminution in value of investment {142) - 0.42) -
b All India Origin Chemists & Distributors Limited 4
2000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 0.20 0.20
Less:- Provision for dimination in value of investment (0.20) - 020 -
< Shappers City Maintenance Co. P Li¢ #
19800 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid up 0.20 0.20
Less:- Provisien for diminution in value of investment (0.20) - {0.20) -
B estments camrfed &t Fair Value thro OcE
1 M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private. Limited 165.09 165.09

222 Equity Shares of Bs. 500/- each fully paid up

2| Midkot Irvestrment Put, Ltd, - Note - 1 50.8¢ 50.80
461825 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up

Investment in Equify Instraments (Quoted]
3 Emami Limited 3586 4478
H¥XND Equity shares of Rs.1/- each fully paid up.

4 Emami Realty Limited 024 0.20
233 Shares of Rs.10/- each fuily paid up
Tol{A+B) 251.95 260,87
C Investment in Preference Shares {Unquoted.
Investments carried at amorfised cost]
Others
M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited 1633 16.33
35000 10% Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.100/-each fully paid up
Redeematle at par at any time within 20 years from date of issue
Towl{C) 16.33 16.33
D Investment in Debentures (Unguoted)
[ Investments carried at amortised cost
Othets
M. Bhattacharyya & Co. Private Limited -Note -2 42500 425.00
425 Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs 100000/ - each fully paid up
Redeemable on or Befere 120 months from the date of Issue
Total{D) 425.00 425.00
Grand Tofal [A+B+C+10) 693.28 702.20
Aggregate value of Quoted Investment and market value thereof 36.06 44.98
Aggregate value of Unquoted Investment 657.22 657.22
#Agpregate provision for dimunition in value of investments 60082 600.82

** Formed under Bombay Nor: - Trading Corporations Act, 1952 not having Face vaiue of Shares

** For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refet note ne 37

Note- 1

PAN emami to Midkot shares

Vide Crder of the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal {*NCLT*) arder No. C.P. [CAA) No. B9/KB/2021 connected with C.A. [CAA) No. 1237/KB/2020 dated 15/11/2021 ("Order”), Pan Emami Cosmed Limited, Emami Capital Markets Ltd., TMT Viniyogan
itd., Newway Constructions Ltd., Karan Business Pvt, L%., Zen Business Pvi. Ltd., Sundew Finance Private Limited, Medal Chemical & Research Works Ltd., Sneka Abasan P, Ltd., Sneha Niketan Pvt. Ltd., Ramshifa Enterprise Pvt, Ltd., and EFL Foods
Umited {"Transferar Companies”) have been amafgamated into and with Midkat Investments Private Limited {"Company), with the appointed date of closing hours of business on 31st March, 2020, and effective date is Sth December, 2021.

As on 31st March, 2022, the Company was holdlng 22750 nos. of equity shares of face value of Rs,10/- each of Pan Emami Cosmed Limited. Pursuant ta the said scheme of amalgamation, during current financial year the Company while exercising Its
option has opted for 2030 equity shares against 100 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/~ each of Pan Emami Cosmed Limited.

Note-2

425 nos. Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures @ 100,000/ - each issued by M Bhattacharya & co Pyt Ltd. Date of allotment- 12-Jan-2022. The same is convertible into equity at the option of the issiter , or be redeemed any time
within 120 months after date of allgtment B 2% premivm.
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Notes to Finaneial Statements

Ra in Lakhs

3lst March, 2023

31s=t Maxch, 2022

Current

Loan

‘To Subsidiary
Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated
Credit impaired

Less:- Allowance for Doubtful debt

Less:- Balance written off during the year
{Refer Note-22)

To related party

Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated *

(Refer Note-30!

‘To others

Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated

1,087.76

1,0B7.76

1,087.76

(1,087.76}

46,506.58

69.25

19,362.09

Total Current- A

45,506.58

19,43L.34

Total Loans {4)

46,506.58

19,451.34

* since received .

Trade recelvables

B1at March, 2025

31st March, 2022

Current
Considered good -Unsecured* - 5,966.31 -
‘Related party 2,073.04 1,195.71
:Others 3,593.26 3,773.66 4,969.37
Credit impaired 7.09 7.09
Less:- Allowance for doubtful debts and advances {7.09) (7.09
Total Current -A 5,966.31 | 4,969.37

*- For eredit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 37

Trade Receivablex Ageing - As at 31at March, 2023

Outstusding Far the following perlod fram dus date of payments

Pariiculars Tatal
Leas than & monfhs 6 mootha - E year 12 yenry -3 years Mors than 3 years

(§) Undi Trade Receivable - © Good 566237 114.26 93.87 3939 5642 5.966.31
(i) Undi Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk =
(iti) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit npaired 7.09 7.00
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good =
() Disprted, Trade Roceivable - Which have significant increase in credit rigk -
(i) Disputed Trade Reoceivable - Credit Impaired 3

TOTAL 5,662.37 114.26 93.87 39.39 5642 | 5,966.31
Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2022

Outstanding far the [olliwirg periof from due date of prymenta
Particalnes Totad
Leas thin 6 months & menths - L year 12 years 1.3 years More than 3 years

(§) Undisputed Trade Rece Considered Good 4716.22 95.16 .18 32.81 46.99 £,969.37
(i) Undispuited Trede Receivable - Which have significant increase in eredit risk .
(3if) Undisputed Trade Reveivable - Credit Impaired 109 T.09
(iv) Disputed Trade Receiveble - Considered Good o
() Thisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant inorease in credit risk -
i) Disprted Trade Recebvable - Crodit Impaired -

TOTAL 4,716.22 98.16 78.18 32.81 4699 4,969.37

Other Financial Aaset: 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022

Security Depasits
Security Deposits-Trade 1,209.97 1,036.13
Other Advances
m;?omts pledged with Banks [including interest 11.19 10.67

Total 1,221.16 1,046.80

*. Lien marked towards Bank Guarantee
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Note7(ii)

Effective tax reconciliation

Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 31.05,2023  31.03.2022
Current Tax - -
{Excess)/Short Provision for Earlier Years 1.66 0.05
Deferred Tax {266.59) (85.16)
Total Income tax Expense recognised in the current year (264.93) (85.11)
The income tax expense can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows:
Particulars March 31,2023 March
31,2022
Profit before tax {658.99) 447 .43
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed Tax Expense (165.85) 112.61
Add/(Deduct) 5 -
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/ (taxable) 648.30 626.98
in calculating taxable income = -
Tax efftect of income which are not taxable {831.26) (979.79)
(Excess)/Short Provision for Earlier Years 1.67 0.06
Tax effect of certain temporary differences measured at lower rates 145.79 56.84
Others (63.58) 98.19
Total Income Tax Expense/(Credit) (264.93) (85.11)
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rs in Lakhs
Qther non-current assets 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Capital Advances - 1.00
Advance to Directors - 26.68
Advance to Employees 26.69 22,03
Other advances
Prepaid Expenses 418 6.42
Rent paid in advance 205.56 166.92
Total 236.43 223.05
Inventories-At lower of cost and Net realisable 31t March, 2023 31st March, 2022
value
Stock- In-Trade 8,025.83 6,983.96
Total 8§,025.83 6,983.96
Cash and cash equivalents 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Balances with Banks
On Current Accounts 646,42 437.80
Other Bank Balance
Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest 3.18 9.11
accrued]
Cash in hand 118.43 132.52
Total 768.97 579.43
QOther Financial Assets 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest accrued but not due
To Subsidiary
Considered good-Unsecured unless otherwise 4
stated
Credit impaired - 131.00
- 131.00
Less: Provision for Doubtful debt - - -
- 131.00
Less:- Balance written off during the year - - (131.00) -
[ Refer Note 22]
Total = =
Other current assets 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Advance to Directors - 10.39
Advance to Employees 45.72 35.74
Considered good ,Unsecured
Insurance Claim Receivable 33.11
Advance against Purchase 8.36 7.56
Advances with Statutory Authorities 189.06 128.28
Prepaid Expenses 53.28 48.51
Advance against Expenses 37.54 24.09
Total 367.07 254.67
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Notes to Financial Statements

14 Other Equity

b)

Rs in Lakhs
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Reserves & Surplus {6,916.30) (6,522.20)
Includes General Reserves and retained earnings.
Other Comprehensive Income 201.50 207.21
Includes re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit
plans and gain/loss on fair value of investments
Total (6,714.80) (6,314.99)
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Notes to Fi 2] Stat ¢

Rs in Lakhs
Financial Liabilities 31stMarch, 2023 31st March, 2022
Borrewings
Term Loans- Secured
From Banks # 26,313.63 18,154.53
Less:- Current Maturities 11,299.23 15,014.40 6,424.23 11,730.30
Non-Convertible Debentures-Secured## 10,500.00
Less:- Current Maturities 1,700.00 8,800.00
Non Convertible Debentures-Unsecured 9,017.95 - 11,236.31
Less:- Current Maturfties 11,236.31 -
Optionally Convertibie Debentures-Unsecured### 14,800.00 -
12,581.63
Total-Borrowings-(i) 36,396.03 22,966.61
Lease Liability
Long Term Maturities of Lease Obligation 3,779.48 1,889.61
Total-Lease Liability-{i){a) 3,779.48 1,889.61
Total-Non Current- A 40,175.51 24,856.22
Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand
Secured Loan from Banks
Cash Credit [ Note 15.1] [717.88) B25.14
Working Capital Demand Loan [ Note 15.1] 6,400.00 5,682.12 440000 522514
Unsecured #
Related Party 4,988.00 9,241.00
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 24,235.55 6,424.23
[Refer Note 15]
Total-Borrowings-(i) 34,905.67 20,890.37
Current Maturities of Lease Obligation 1,097.51 745.29
TFotal-Lease Liability-{i}{a) 1,097.51 745,29 |
Total-Current-B 36,003.18 21,635.66
Total Berrowings [A+B} 76,178.69 46,491.88
# Refer Note 29

Bank-1 -Cash Credit And Working Capital Demand Loan are secured primarily by way of hypothecation on: the entire Current
Assets of the company existing and future comprising of Stock-in-trade, receivables , book debts and other current assets. These
[oans are further secured Collateraly by way of Hypoethecation / mortgage on all fixed assets (exchuding vehicles ) of the
company, both present and ficture.

Bank-2 -Subservient charge by way of Hypethecation over entire Current asset & moveable Fixed assets of the company {hoth
present & future). Also, exclusive charge by way of pledge of shares of promoter shareholder and also coprporate guarantee by a
prometer sharehalder .

Secured Rated,listed and unlisted Non Cx deb {NCD)

The cempany has issued 980 listed secured Rated & 220 urlisted secured Rated redeemable & non converticle debentures of face value of Rs 10,00,000/- eech on private
placement basls aggregating to Rs 120 crores (98 crores +22 crores! during FY22-23 in pursuance of articles of association of company and as app by baard of directars
of the company.

The cougon related to RCDs will be {inked to and be equivalent to avarage of 1year MCLR (ie, Marginal Cost of Funds Based Lending Rate) of 4 banks viz. ICICI Bank, HOEC
Bank, 5Bl 2nd Bank of Baroda plus apnlicable Spread and shall be reset on quarterly basis 2t the begining of each quarter { i.e. on April 1, luly 1, Dctaber 2, and Januery | of
each year) As on date of execution of this Deed, the Coupan comprisas of (i) the sversge 1-year MCLR as on April 1, 2022, of 7.20% p.a and (ji} spread of 2.3% p.a

fiifZere Coupon Unsecured Optlopally Convertlble Dabentures {OCD)

The company has restructure fts irances and has issued 14800 zera coupon unsecured aptionally Convertible Debentures @ Rs 1,009,000/ each on preferential basis
amounting to 148 crores in 7Y 22-23 In pursuance of articles of i of. pany and as app by board of and sharehalders of the

The OCDs shall be optionally canvertible into the equity shares of the company and/ or redeeemable at any time at the option of the issuer within a period of 13 years for
the date of alletrment. The OCD shall be redeemad within a perfod of 30 days after the expirey of 10 years L. st the end of tenure of the OCD if not converted into equity
shares.

Each debenture holders shall be entitled to Be present at the meeting of debenture helders and vote on any resolutian whith affects their rights & Interast shall he payable
yeatly @ 1% cn the paid up vaiue of debentures as on 31st march , each year.

Other Financial Liahilities 31st March, 2023 31stMarch, 2022
Interest due to MSME 1.68 0.97
Depaosit against rent 22,50 22,50
Total Non Current 24.18 2347
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Notes to Financial Statements Rsin Lakhs
Provisions 31stMarch, 2023 31st March, 2022
Provision for Empl Bepefi
For Gratuity 182.06 143.04
For Leave 130.07 312.13 123.76 266.80
Total 312,13 266.80
TFrade payables 31stMarch, 2023 31st March, 2022
Total m:}tstandmg dues of Micro enterprises and small 4353 43.99
enterprises
Total ou-tstandmg dues of crec%;tors other than Micro 5,058.38 2,568.75
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 5,101.91 2,612.74
I eing - t C]
Quitstanding for the following period from due date of payments
Particulars TOTAL
Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 42.96 0.33 0.24 S 43.53
(ii) Others 2,368.73 2,408,07 17232 109.25 5,058.3%
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(iv) Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 2,411.70 2,408.40 172.56 109.25 5,101.91
Trade Payables Apeing - As at 31st March, 2022
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments
Particulary TOTAL
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 41.95 1.67 0.35 0,03 43.99
(i) Others 2,378.28 103.79 40,58 46.09 2,568.75
(iif} Disputed dues - MSME
(iv} Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 2,420,23 105.45 40,93 46.12 2,612.74
Other Financial Liabilities 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 271.16 82.69
Other Payables
Employee Expense 30142 292.43
Liabilities for Expenses 173.57 47499 357.72 650.15
Total 746.15 732.84
Other current Habilities 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Statutory Liabilities - 13.42
Advance from Customers 43.77 108.24
Total 43.77 121.66
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rs in Lakhs
Revenue from Operations 2022-23 2021-22
Sale of Products 54,748.98 49,402.81
Other Operating Revenues
Rent 61.85 55.01
Income From Store Displays 307.04 198.14
Franchisee Fees 44,88 1412
Facility Management Fees 1.26 415.03 10,94 278.21
Total 55,164.01 49,681.02
Other Income 2022-23 2021-22
Interest Income
Interest on Loan given 3,681.12 5,331.90
Interest on Others
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 65.95 71.56
Interest on Deposit 2,18 3.80
Interest ont Income Tax refund - 68.13 1.43 76.79
Discount Received .60
Income From Slump Sale * 671.61
Dividend on Long Term Non-Trade Investment 0.80 0.80
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 1.73 444 64
Provision for Loans / Debts Written off = 1,218.76
Less : Adjusted against Provision - - (1,218.76) -
Excess Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances written back - 32.00
Insurance Claim 3311 0.33
Liabilities Written Back 4.22 8.58
Miscellaneous Receipts 19.05 2412
Tatal 4,480.37 5,919.16
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 2022-23 2021-22
{I) Opening Inventory 6,983.96 7,934.38
(1) Closing Inventory 8,025.83 6,983.96
{Increase)/Decrease (1,041.87) 950.42
Employee Benefits Expense 2022-23 2021-22
Salaries and Wages 4,949.67 431061
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 380.61 352.20
Staff Welfare Expense 134.10 121.03
Total 5,464.38 4,783.84

*Being Sale of business at Chennai under "Starmark” division.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rs in Lakhs
Finance Costs 202223 2021-22

Finance cost on Lease obligation 454,77 128.05
Interest Expense- Debentures & Bonds 2,132.36 1,427.97
Interest expense - Bank & Others 3,332.97 5,069.19
Other Borrowing Costs 573.16 409.62

Total 6,493.26 7,034.83

Other Expenses 2022-23 2021-22

Power & Fuel 323.31 289.43
Rent & License Fees 506.07 447.89
Repairs to Building 13.18 =
Maintenance Charges 666.04 629.18
Security Charges 61.52 54.34
Insurance 11.18 27.01
Rates & Taxes 119.55 113.93
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 197.46 106.47
Commission 69.91 54.30
Professional & Legal Charges [Refer note - 27] 529.12 22431
Internet and other communication expenses 71.38 68.95
Loss on sale / discard of Fixed Assets 1.46 9.76
Miscellaneous Expenses 682.49 555.22

Total 3,252.69 2,580.79




Notes to Financial Statements

Rs in Lakhs
27 Payment To Audifors
icul
i Year ended 31st Year ended 31st March
March 2023 2022
Audit Fees 12.54 12.54
Tax Audit Fees 0.96 0.96
Limited Review 1.50 1.50
Other Services 5.92 012
Total 20.92 15.12
28 Information for Earnings per share as per IND AS 33
Particulars st 321052t3MaICh As at 31st March 2022
Net Profit (394.06) 532.55
Weighted average number of shares 23,29,282 20,82,707
Earnings per share - Basic & diluted (16.92) 25.57
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Notaes o Flnanclal Statements

Rs |n Lakh
Detalls of Barrowlngs:-
Datalls of Term Loans from Bank
sl. Type of Loan ROl 25 on 31-Nard? Security Amount outstanding Amotnt outstanding
HNo, as on 31-Mar-23 a3 ot 31-Mar-22
1 Working Capital_term 9.25% p.a on Second charge aver afl existing primary & collateraf  |Principal amount 1,774.67 2,440.11
Loan- Under ECLGS of oustanding INR securities including mortzgages created in favour of the hedul Repayment Sehedule
NCGTC bank, subject to the subsisting charges ereated over Date - Amount Date Amount
various primary and collateral securities, Including 30-Apr-23 55.46 30-Apr-22 55.46
securities charged by third parties. 31-May-23 55.46 31-May-22 55.46
30-Jun-23 55.46 | 30-Jun-22 55.46
31{-Jul-23 55.46 31-Jut-22 55.46
31-Aug-23 55.46 | 3i-Aug-22 55.46
30-8ep-23 55.46 30-Sep-22 55.46
31-0et-23 55.46 31-Oct-22 55.46
30-Nov-23 55.46 30-Nov-22 59.46
31-Dee-23 55,46 31-Dec-22 55.46
3i-Jan-24 55.46 31-Jan-23 55.46
29-Feh-24 55.46 28-Feb-23 35.46
31-Mar-24 55.46 | 31-Mar-23 55.46
30-Apr-24 35.46 30-Apr-23 35.46
31-May-24 35.46  31-May-23 55.46
30-Jun-24 55.46 | 30-Jun-23 55.46
31-Jul-24 55.46 31-Jul-23 55.46
31-Aug-24 55.46 | 31-Aug-23 35.46
30-8ep-24 55.46 | 30-Sep-23 55.46
31-Oct-24 35.46 31-Oct-23 55.46
30-Nov-24 55.46 30-Nov-23 55.46
31-Dec-24 55.46 31-Dec-23 55.46
31l-Jan-25 55.46 31-Jan-24 55.46
28-Feb-25 55.46 29-Feb-24 55.46
31-Mar-25 535.46 | 31-Mar-24 55.46
30-Apr-25 55.46 30-Apr-24 55.46
31-May-25 33.46 | 31-May-24 55.46
30-Jun-25 55.46 | 30-Jun-24 33.46
31-Jul-25 55.46 31-Jul-24 55.46
31-Aug-25 95.46 | 31-Aug-24 55.46
30-8ep-25 55.46 30-8ep-24 55.46
31-Oct-25 55.46 31-0ct-24 55.46
30-Nov-25 55.46 | 30-Nov-24 55.46
31-Dec-24 55.46
31-Jan-25 55.46
28-Feb-25 35.46
31-Mar-25 55.46
30-Apr-25 35.46
31-May-25 35.46
30-Jun-23 55.46
31-Jul-25 595.46
31-Aug-25 55.46
30-8ep-23 55.46
31-Oct-25 55.46
30-Nov-25 55.46
2 Term Loan-Rupee 1yr MELAH).45% - At | Subservient charge by way of hypothecatian over entire | Principal amount 333.33 666.57
present-8.10% p.2 on | current asset and moveable fixed asset of the company Repayment Schedule Schedule
outstanding INR (both present and future). The same is further secured Date Amount Date Amount
by pledge of shares by a promoter shareholder .Further 01-Jun-23 83.33 1 01-Jun-22 83.33
secured by way of corporate guarantes of a promoter 01-8ep-23 83.33 01-Sep-22 83.33
01-Dec-23 83.33 ¢1-Dec-22 83.33
01-Mar-24 83.33 | 0l-Mar-23 83.33
01-Jun-23 83.33
01-Sep-23 83.33
01-Dee-23 83.33
01-Mar-24 83.33
3 Tetm Loan-Rupse 15%p.a on outstanding | First Charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all | Principal amount 1,200.00 2,175.00
INR the fixed assets {movahle and Immovable) of the pay hedul Repayment Schedule
company, both present ang future excluding Data Ameunt Date [ amoumt
Vehicles. The same [s further secured by pledge of 30-Jun-23 000G 30-Jun-22 225.00
shares by a promoter shareholder 20-5ep-23 500 30-Sep-22 225.00
30-Dec-23 450.00 31-Dec-22 225.00
31-Mar-23 300.00
3C-Jun-23 300.00
30-5ep-23 450.00
30-Dec-23 450.00
4 Term Loan-Rupee 15%p.a on autstanding | 1st Charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all |Principal ameunt 2,100.00 4,550.00
IMR the fixed assets {movabls and immeovable} of the Repayment Schedul Repayment Schedule
company, both present and future excluding Vehides. Date Amount Date _L‘IIHT
The same s further secured by pledge of shares by a 30-Jur-23 1,050.00 30-Jun-22 525.00
promoter shareholder 28-Sep-13 1,050.00 | 3C-Sep-22 525.00
31-Dec-22 700,00
3i-Mar-23 700.00
3-Jun-23 1,050.00
28-5ep-23 1,050.00
5 Term Loan-Rupee 15%p.a on outsianding | 1st Charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage onall |Princlpal amoung 65,499.30 8,499.70
INR the fixed assets {movable and 'mmovable) of the schedule Repayment Schedule
company, both present 2nd future excluding Vehides. Date Amaunt Date Amuunt
_The same is further secured by pledge of shares bya 30-Apr-25 166.70 30-Apr-22 166.70
prameterEhareholizs 31-May-23 16570 | 3t-May-22 16670
30-Jun-23 166.70 30-lun-22 166.70




sl Tyfie'of Lown Security Amount cutstanding Amount autstanding
No. 25 on31-Mar-23 a3 on:J1-Mar-22
31-Jul-23 166.70 31-Jul-22 16671
31-Aug-23 166.70 31.-Aug-22 166.7
30-5ep-23 166.70 20-5ep-22 1667
31-0Cct-23 166.70 3i-Cct-22 166.7
30-Nov-23 166,70 | 30«Nav-22 166.71
31-Dec-23 166.70 31-Dec-22 166.7t
31-fan-24 16670 31-jan-23 166.7
29-Feb-24 166.70 28-Feb-23 166.7(
31-iar-29 166.70 31-Mar-23 165.71
30-Apr-24 166.70 30-Apr-23 166.7(
3i-May-24 166.70 31-May-23 166.7(
30-Jun-Z4 166.7G 30-Jun-23 156.7(
31-Juj-24 186.2¢ 31-tul-23 186,71
31-Aug-24 166.70 31-Aug-23 166.7¢
30-5ep-24 166,70 30-8ep-23 166.7¢
31-Oct-24 166,70 31-Dct-23 166.7C
30-Nov-24 166.70 | 30-Nov-23 166.7¢
31-Dec-24 16670 | 31-Dec-23 166.7¢
31-Jan-25 186.70 33-Jan-24 166.70
25-Feb-25 166.70 | 2B-Feb-24 166.7¢
31-Mar-25 166.70 | 31-Mar-24 166,77
30-Apr-25 166.70 30-Apr-24 165.7C
31-May-25 166.70 31-May-24 166.7C
30-jun-25 166.70 30-lun-24 166.7C
31-Jul-25 156.70 31-jul-24 166.7C
31-Aug-25 16870 | 31-Aug-24 166.74
30-5ep-23 168.70 30-Sep-24 166,70
31-Cct-25 166.70 31-Dct-24 166.70
30-Nov-25 166.70 | 30-Now-24 166.70
31-Dec-25 166.70 31-Dec-24 166.70
31-fan-26 166.70 31-fan-25 166.70
28-Feb-26 166870 | 28-Feb-25 166.70
31-Mar-26 166.70 | 31-Mar-25 166.70
30-Apr-25 166.70 30-Apr-25 166.70
31-May-26 166.70 | 31-May-25 166,70
30-Jun-26 164.70 30-lun-25 166.70
31-jul-25 166.70
31-Avg-25 166,70
30-Sep-25 166.70
31-Cct-25 166.70
30-Nov-25 166,70
31-Dec-23 166.70
31i-Jan-26 166.70
28-Feb-26 166.70
31-Mar-26 166.70
30-Apr-26 166.70
31-May-26 166.70
30-lun-Z5 164.70
8 Rated unlisted 1125 Bonds issued at face value of Rs 1creach Principal amount 11,250.00 11,250.00
Redeemable Non- repayable by way of builet repayment on the expiry of hedul Repayment Schedule
Convertible Debentures the term of debenture . Secured by way of pledge of Date Amount Date Amount
shares by promoter shareholding and alse guaranteed 10-lul-23 11,250.00 10-nl-23 11,750.00
By & promoter shareholder. Also, hypothecatian aver a
designated account ,
Total Outstanding as at year end-Princlpa! 23,157.30 29,5815
Fotal Sutstanding ssat year end-amottized cast as por INDAS 28,415.84 29,390.84
Current Maturities-Principal 17,549.23 5,274.70
Sl  |Type oflgmn ROI as on 31-Mar-23 Security Amount outstanding Amotinit cutstanding
No. a5 on 31-Mar-23 ds on 31-Mar-22
1 Term Loan-Rupee 10.25%| First charge by way of Hypothecation / mertgage on all |Principal amount 7,291.67 -
the fixed assets {mavable and immavable) of the Repsyment Schedule R hedul
company, bath present and future.Second charge by Gate Amount Date Amount
way of hypotecation of the entire Current assets of the 30-Apr-23 208.3%
company, existing and future, comprising, inter alia, of 31-May-23 208.33
stocks of raw material, work in progress, finished gaods, 30-Jun-23 208.33
receivables, baok debts nad other current assets. 31-Jul-23 208,33
31-Aug-23 208.33
30-Sep-23 208.33
31-Oct-23 208.33
30-Nov-23 208.33
31-Dec-23 208.33
31-Jan-24 208.33
29-Feb-24 208.33
31-Mar-24 208.33
30-Apr-24 208.33
31-May-24 208.33
30-Jun-24 208.33
31-jul-24 208.33
31-Aug-24 208.33
30-5ep-24 208.33
31-0ct-24 208.33
30-Nov-24 208.33
31-Dec-24 208.33
3i-lan-25 208.33
28-Feb-25 208.33
31-Mar-25 208.33
30-Apr-25 208.33
31-May-25 208.33
30-Jun-25 208.33



Amioimt cutstanding

5L Tywe of Loan OL 2 on I1-Mar-17 Security Amount outstanding
No, as on 31-Mar-23 as on A1-Mar-22
31-tul-23 208.33
31-Aug-25 208.33
30-5ep-25 208.33
31-0ct-25 208.33
30-Nov-25 208.33
31-Dec-25 208.33
31-Jan-26 208.33
28-Feb-26 208.33
Term Loan-Rupee 10.75%| First charge by way of Hypothecation / mortgage en all | Principal emount T,291.67
the fixed assets (movable and Immovable) of the Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedul
company, both present and future.5econd charge by Date Amount Data Amount
way of hypotecation of the entire Current assets of the 30-Apr-23 208,33
company, existing and future, comprising , inter alia, of 31-May-23 208.33
stocks of raw material, work in progress, finished goods, 30-Jun-23 208.33
31-Jul-23} 208.33
31-Aug-23 208.33
30-8ep-23 208.33
31-Oct-23 208.33
30-Nov-23 208.33
3i-Dec-23 208.33
31-Jan-24 208.33
29-Feb-24 208,33
31-Mar-24 208.33
30-Apr-24 208.33
31-May-24 208.33
30-Jun-24 208.33
31-Jul-24 208.33
31-Aug-24 208.33
30-Sep-24 208.33
31-Oct-24 208.33
30-Nov-24 208.33
3i-Dec-24 208.33
31-Jan-25 208.33
28-Feb-25 208.33
31-Mar-25 208.33
30-Apr-25 208.33
31-May-25 208.33
30-Jun-25 208.33
31-Jul-23 208.33
31-Aug-25 208.33
30-Sep-25 208.33
31-0ct-25 208.33
30-Nov-25 208.33
31-Dec-25 208.33
31-Jan-26 208.33
28-Feb-26 208.33
Bond Listed 43 Cr 10.25%p.a on Average of 1year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, |Principal amount 3,300.00
{INE7 LIXOTO70) HDFC Bank, 5Bl & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
rates Date Amount Date Amount
3C-lun-23 S00.00
30-5ep-23 500.00
31-Dec-23 £00.00
21-Apr-z4 1,600.00
Bond Listed 10.25%p.5 an Average of 1year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICIC] Bank, | Principal amount 4,200.00
{INET11X07062} HDFC Bank, 581 & Bank of Baroda plus applcable spread Repayment Schedula scheduls
rates Date Amount Date Amount
30-Jun-25 &00.00
30-5ep-25 §00.00
31-Dec-25 600.00
31-Mar-26 600.00
30-Jun-25 500,00
30-5ep-26 600.00
31-Dec-26 600.00
Bond Listed 10.25%p.aon Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, | Principal amount 800,00
[INE711X07054) HDFC Bark, 5B & Bank of Baroda plus appiicable spread Repayment Schedule P schedule
rates Date Amount Date Amount
30-lun-24 400.00
3C-5ep-24 400,00
1]
&and Uniisted 10.25%p.a on Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Benks viz. iC1C1 Bank, | Principal amount i} 1,000,090
{INE711X0708K) HOFC Bank, 581 & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread Repayment Schadul Repayment Schedule
rates Date Amourt Date Amount
31-Dec-24 500.00
31-Mar-25 500.0¢
Q
Bond UnlListed 10.25%p.a on Average of I year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz, ICICi Bank, |Principal amount [+ 12,00,00,000.00
{INET11X070%6) HDFC Bank, SBi & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spread pay hedul Repayment Schedule
rates Date Amount Date Amount
31-Mar-27 €00.00
30-hun-27 600.00
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Related Party Disclosure

Paries where contyol exists

Subsidiary

Lyfresh Pvt Ltd- wholly owned subsidiary

Eey Managerial Persounel & Other Direcfors

Eey Managerial Personnef i

Mr Gautam Jatia Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mr Sujay Chattaraj ‘Wholetime Director
Ms Chadaravalli Srinivasa Bhatta Nalinl Wholetime Director
Mr. Anurag Jata Wholetime Director
Mr. Amit Agarwal [ Joined w.e.f 02-05-2022 & resigned on 19-01-2023 ] Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Akhilesh Agarwal [ resigned w.e.f31-03-2022 ] Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Bimal Agarwal [ Joined w.ef 29-04-2023 | Chief Financizl Dfficer
Ms Amritz Bhattacharya Company Secretary

Other Directors

Mr. Debashishk Bhaumik
Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah
Mrs Karabi Sengupta

Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Relatives of Key Mangerial personnel
Mr. R Jada (Upto 31.01.2023-Demise]
Mrs Vandana Jatia

Mrs Neeta Agarwal( Upto 31-03-2022 )

Entities having significant Influence over the group

MidXkot Investments Private Limited [ Company was an associate of the Entity upto 14.02.2023. Now a prometer company]
Suraj Finvest Private Limited [ name changed from Sneha Gardens Pvt, Ltd. ] [ Company is an associate of the Entity ]
Diwakar Finvest Private limited [ formerly known as Sneha enclave private ltd J[ Company i3 an assoclate of the Entity ]

Other related parties with which Company has transaction

AMRI Hospitzls Ltd,

Archana promaoters & Developers Pvt Ltd

Emami Agrotech Ltd.

Emamil Capital Markets Ltd (Merged with Midket [nvestment Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11-2022)
Karan Business Pvt Ltd (Merged with Midkot Investrzent Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11-2022)
Emami Realty Ltd.

Emami Art Pvt, Ltd

Emami Ltd.

Emami Paper Mills Ltd.

Emami Foundation

M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

New Way constructions Itd (Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd-Date-15-11-2022)
Niramay Distributers Pvt Lid.

PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd . (Merged with Mickot Investment Pvt Ltd-Date-15-11-2022}
Premier Ferro Allays & Securlties Ltc .

Shepper's <ity maintenance company Pyt Itd

South city Projects Kolkata Ltd,

Shri Prashant Goenka

Nayee Disha Comtnunications Pvt td

Shri Jayant Goenka

Smt Priti A Surekha

SGN Retail Pvt Ltd

Dhwakar Finvest Private iimited ( fortnerly known as Sneha enclave private Itd )

i i Rs in Lakh
Description of relationship Nature of For the Flrancial year A ding ™
with party Transaction 2022-23 2021-22 As on 31.03.23 As on 31.03.22

Subsidiary Investment in Subsidiary - - 600.00 600.00
Provisian against Joans giver written back - 1,250.74 - -

Key Managerial Personnel Salary 168.89 262.54 - -
Perquisites 19.11 13.19 2 -
Sale of Fixed Assets - 32,53 & o
Rent Received - .34 - 0.34
Loans & Advance Given 5.07 4391 = 3751

Other Directors Sitting fees 2.75 230 N -
Salary 1248 11.29 - S

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel | Perquisites 199 8.61 - &
Retainership 64.00 37.80 D -

Cther Entitles Sale of Goods 11,386.97 8,286.06 2,073.04 1,195.71
Display Charges 3537 19.64 = -
Rent Received 047 .40 - =
Ambulance Bire Charges - 6,16 - =
Reimbursement of exp-Income - 313 - -
Purchase of Assets 5.34 30.00 - =
Purchase of Goods 8,946,52 7,495.85 (70.53) (93.87)
Guarantee Commission Paid 138.54 117.75 {21.76) (40.38)
Interest en Loan taken 1,023.66 2,419.89 (253.47) (82.69)
Rent & maintenance paid 344.65 212.70 - (8,57}
Royalty 11.80 10.00 - -
Electricity Charges 3447 13.24 (13.07) (6:42]
Advt & Sales promotion F 2.16 = 7.89
Interest on Loan Given 1.64 33562 = =
Advance/Deposit given - 32500 1.02 102
Reimursment of exp 387.13 36861 - -
Loan Given - 4,065.00 - 69.25
Loan Given refunded 69,25 12,462.00 - -
Loan Taken 32,164.00 51,026.00 (4,988.00) (9,241.00)
Loan Taken refund back 36417.00 | 41,785.00 g =

**- Figures in brackets denote Credit Balance
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N to Financi n
Rsin Lakhs

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Therefore, Net Deferred Tax Asset of Rs 3560.93 lakhs (P.Y.- Rs.3293.43 lakh) has been recognised till
date in the accounts in compliance with IND AS 12 on" Income Taxes"

ntingent Liabilities & Commi ts :-

Contingent Liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Bank Guarantees 476.95 403.04

Contingent Liability disclosed above represents possible obligations where the possibility of cash cutflow
to settie the obligation is remote .

Commitments

Estimated amount of Commitment not provided - Rs. Nil,

sets given rating Lease

The company has given assets under non-canceilable operating lease . The total lease rent received on the
same is Rs 0,40 Lakh- [ P.Y - Rs 0.40 Lakh |

The minimum future lease rentals receivable in respect of non-canceilable lease as at 31-March-23 are as
under:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Lease contributicns for the year 040 0.40
Minimum Lease payment contributions
-Not later than one Year 0.40 0.40
-Later than one year but not later than five years 2.00 2.00
-Later than 5 years 13.20 13.60

Assets taken on Operating Lease

The company has taken shops on rent.The total minimum lease payments and present value of minimum
lease payments are as follows:-

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Minimum Present value off Minimum | Present value of
Particulars -
Lease Minimum }ease Lease Minimum lease
payments payments payments payments
-Not later than one Year ' 1,512.09 1,097.51 1,026.83 745.29
-Later than 1 Year 5,088.27 3,779.48 2,543.95 1,889.61

The difference between minimum lease payments and the present value of minimum lease payments of Rs. 1698.21 lakh
(P.Y- Rs 935.88 lakh) represents interest not due..
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Defined benefit plan

Rs in Lakhs

35.1 Defined benefit plan (Gratuity)

i |Gratuity: The Company has a defined Gratuity Plan for its employees. Every employee who has completed five years or mare
of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Scheme is
funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

Particulars Year ended 31st. March 2023 | Year ended 31st March 2022
Gratuity Gratuity
Funded Funded

A |Components of Employer Expenses

1 |Current Service Cost 86.06 70.94

2 |Pastservice Cost - -

3 |Loss/(Gain) on settlement - -

4 |Netinterest income/(cost} on the net defined benefit liability 10.44 7.10
{Asset)

5 |Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 96.50 78,04

B |Net asset/{liability} recognised in balance sheet as at 31st
March 2023

1 |Presentvalue of Defined Benefit Obligation 641.95 572.11

2 |Fair value of plan assets 459,90 429.07

3  |Funded Status [Surplus/{deficit)] {182.06) (143.04)

4 [Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet {182.06) (143.04)

C |Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended
31st March 2023

1 |Present value of DBQ at beginning of period 572,11 520.75

2 |Current Service Cost 86.06 70.94

3 |Interest Cost 41.76 35.93

4  |Re-measurement (or actuarial}{gain)/loss arising from - -
-Change in demographic assumptions - -
-Change in financial assumptions 7.61 {26.92)
-Experience variation {i.e Actual experience vs assumptions) {10.31) {9.21)

5 |Past Service cost - -

6 |Benefits Paid (55.27) (19.38)

7 |Acquisition adjustment -

8 |Effect of business combinations or disposals =

7 |Present value of DBO at the end of period 541.96 572,11

D |Change in Fair Value of Assets

1 |Falr value of Planned assets at beginning of pericd 429.06 417.88

2 |Investment income 31.32 28.83

3 |Employer's contribution 57.51 0.93

4  |Benefits paid (55.27) {19.38)

5 [Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net (2.73) 0.80
interest expense

6 )Acquistion adjustment

7 |Fair value of Plan assets at end of the period 459.89 429,06

E |Other Comprehensive Income

1 |Actuarial {gains)/Losees
-Changes in demographic assumptions = =
-Changes in financial assumptions 7.61 (26.92)
-Experience variance (i.e Actual experience vs assumptions) {10.31) (9.21})

2 tReturn on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 2.73 {0.80)
interast expense

3 |Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 0.03 (36.94)
comprehensive income




35.2

Notes to Financial Statements

Defined benefit plan
Defined benefit plan -Leave

Rs in Lakhs

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

Leave encashment

Unfunded

Leave encashment

Unfunded

A WNRP D

ot

(] AW N e

nha WwNR QD ~ 0 ~N O wn B W NPR

-~ o

Components of Employer Expenses

Current Service Cost

Past service Cost

Loss/(Gain) on settlement

Net interest income/(cost) on the net defined benefit liability
{Asset)

change in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due to Change in financial assumption

Actuarial {gains)/ Losses due to Change in experience variance

Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss

Net asset/(liability} recognised in balance sheet as at 31st
March 2022

Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit)]

Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended
31st March 2022

Present value of DBO at beginning of period

Current Service Cost

Interest Cost

Re-measurement (or actuarial){gain)/loss arising from
-Change in demographic assumptions

-Change in financial assumpttons

-Experience variaticn (i.e Actual experioence vs assumptions)

Past Service cost

Benefits Paid

Acquisition adjustment

Effect of business combinations or disposals
Present value of DBO at the end of period

Change in Fair Value of Assets

Fair value of Planned assets at beginning of period
Investment income

Employer's contribution

Benefits pald

Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net
interest expense

Acquistion adjustment

Fair value of Plan assets at end of the period

11.42

9.04

1,55
17.38

39.39

130.07

{130.07)
{130.67)

123.76
11.42
9.03

1.55
17.38

(33.07)

130.07

33.07
(33.07)

25.36

7.38

(6.44
31.36

57.66

123.76

{123.76,
(123.76

106.75
25.36
7.37

{6.44)
31.36

(40.64)

123.76

40.64
{40.64)
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Rs in Lakhs

The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets

Year ended 31st March 2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

Fund managed by insurer

100%

100%

™
[l

Assumptions

Year ended 31st March 2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

Financial assumptions

Discount rate % 7.30% 7.30%
Rate of increase in salaries 9% p.a 9% p.a
Demographic assumptions

Mortality rate (% of IALM 2012-14) 100% 100%
Normal retirement age 58 years 58 years
Attrition rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages 2%p.a 2% p.a

iv  [Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected salary
increase and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the
assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity
analysis is given below:-
Revenue from operation Year ended 31st March 2023 | Year ended 31st March 2022
Defined benefit obligation base 641.95 572.11
Year ended 31st March 2023 | Year ended 31st March 2022
Particulars Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
a |Discount rate (-/ +1%) 726.24 571.66 643.28 512.59
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 13.13% 10.95% 12.44% -10.40%
b |Salary growth rate {-/ +1%) 572.61 72298 514.33 639.8
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -10.80% 12.62% -10.10% 11.83%
¢ |Attrition rate (-/ +50%) 654.5 630.97 581.66 563.74
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 1.95% -1.71% 1.67% -1.46%
d |Mortality rate (-/ +10%) 643.45 040.48 573.26 570.97
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.23% 0.23% 0.20% -0.20%
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated .
v Effect of plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and funding policy
The company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees . Every year , the
insurance company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest emplyee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in
the assets arising as a reult of such valuation is funded by the company
b} Expected contibution during the next annual reporting period

Particulars

Year ended 31st March 2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next year

286.38

216.66
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36 Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of financial assets & liabilities ix classifled in various fair value hierarchy based on following three levels:-

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted} in active market for identical assets or labilides.

a) Financial Insirments by category Rs in Lakhs
31 March Z023 31 March 2022
Particylars Amortised Cost | FVTOC At Cost Amortised Cast f FVTac | At Cost
FEinancial Assets
Investment In Equity shares (Quoted) 36,053,946 44,97,947
[nvestment In Equity shares (Unquoted) 2,15,89,549 215,89,549
Investment in Equity shares [Inquoted)-Deemed cost = B
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquated) 16,32,776 16,332,776
Investment in Debenturas (Unquoted) 4.25,00.000 4,25,00,000
Trade Receivables 59,66,30,510 49,69,36,654
Lcans and Advances 4,65,06,57,627 1,94,31,35388
Other Financial Assets 12.21,16,615 10,46,79,332
Cashand Cash Equivalents 7,68,97,090 579,43,436
Fi ial Liahili
Borrowings{including interest acerued) 7.15.72,86.370 4,39,39,67,938
Trade Payables 51,01,50,935 26,12,74,450
Fair Value Hierarchy
PARTICULARS Fair Value Hierarchy As at 31-03-23 Asat 31-03-22
Financial Assets
Investment in Equity Share{Quoted) Level 1 36,05,946.20 44,57,946.70
Investment in Equity Share(Unguoted} Level 2 2,15,89,549.00 2,15,8%,549.00

Level Z; Inputs other than quoted price incdluded within level 1 that are observable for the #sset or liability, either directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly fi.e. derived frem prices). The falr value of financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using market approach and valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as pessible on entity-

specific estimates.

Level 3: [nputs for the assets or lisbilities that are not based on observabie market data (unebservabls inputs).

The fair value of the financizl assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction betwean willing parties, other than in a forced or Equidated

Based on the evaluation of Trade Recelvables, allowances are considered to accaunt for the expected losses of these recefvables. As at end of each reporting year, the carmying amount of such recetvables , net of allowances (ffany)

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

When the falr value of unquoted instruments cannot be measurad with sufficient reliability, the group carries such instruments at cost less impatrment, If applicable.

Fair value cf financial assets and liabllities measured at amortised tost :

The Company uses Discounted Cash Flow Valuation Technique which involves determination of present value of expected receipt discounted using appropriate discounting rate.

21/03/23 31/03/22

Particulars Carying Value [ Falr Value Carying Value | Eair vatue
Financial Assets
Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted) 16,32,776 1632776 1632776 16,32,776
[nvestment in Debentures (Unqueted) 4.25,00,G00 4,25,00,000 4,25,00,000 4,25,00,000
Security Deposit 120997387.5 120997387.5 10,05,63,142 10,05,63,142
Financiat Liahilities
Borrowings(including interest accrued} 7,15,72,86.370 7,15,72,86,370 4.39,39,67,938 4,39,39.67,938
‘The Management has assessed that the Fair Vatue of other financial assets and labilities (cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables,fxed deposits, short term loans and advances and other current liabilities)

approximates their carrying amotnts largely due to the short term nature of these instrurments. Fair value of non-current financial instruments (ather than above) approximates to their carrying value which is based on effective

interest rate.
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(4)

(B)

Rs in Lakhs
Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any adverse
effects on the financial performance of the company, the company has risk management policies as described below

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financial
obligations as per the terms of contract. The company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, financial guarantees. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentration
of credit risks. Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode are made after judging
credit worthiness of the customers or advance payment . The history of defaults has been minimal and outstanding
receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on the loans to parties, the company is not expecting any
material risk on account of non-performance by any of the parties.The company creates allowances for all
unsecured receivables and advances based on lifetime expected credit loss . The company has written off the
Expected credit loss amounting to NIL (PY:Rs. 1218.76 Lakh) in current year.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company fails to honour its financial obligations in accordance with terms of
contract. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and
to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company's liquidity position and cash
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s liquidity management policy
involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance
sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The Company does not have any derivative financial liability. The following are the remaining contractual maturities
of non derivative financial liabilities at the reporting period:

Year ended 31.3.2023

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5years | More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 24,235.55 47,066.16 - 71,301.71
Interest on borrowings 271.16 = = 271.16
Trade Payables 5,101.91 - - 5,101.91
Employee Benefits Payable 301.42 - - 301.42
Other Liabilities 173.57 - - 173.57
Total 30,083.61 47,066.16 - 77,149.77
Year ended 31.3.2022

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to5years | More than5 years Total
Borrowings 6,424.23 37,432.76 - 43,856.99
Interest on horrowings 82.69 - - 82.69
Trade Payables 2,612.74 - - 2,612.74
Employee Benefits Payable 292.43 - - 29243
Other Liabilities 357.72 - - 357.72
Total 9,769.81 37,432.76 - 47,202.57
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Rs in Lakhs

(C) Market risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of

changes in foreign exchange rates.

There is no transaction which will result in foreign currency exposure during the year.
Foreign Currency paid for the year w.r.timports amounts to Rs 0 (PY:Rs. 17.07 Lakhs), and w.r.t travelling amounts

to Rs. NIL (PY:: Rs. NIL).

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from short term and long-term borrowings with variable rates, which
expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible changes in interest rates on that portion of
loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables remaining constant, the company's profit before tax is
affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Rs in lakh
. Increafse/ . | Effect on Profit
Particulars decrease in Basis
; before tax
points

31.03.2023 +0.50 (357.86)
-0.50 357.86

31.03.2022 +(.50 (219.70)
-0.50 219,70

(iii) Price risk

The company’s exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held - both quoted and unquoted
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss. The
company is not expecting high risk exposure from its investment in securities.
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Notes to Financlal Statements

Since the company operates enly in one segment i.e retailing and also in one country i.e India, hence
information on segment reporting with respect to operating and gecgraphical segment is not provided .

Previous year's figures have been regroupd and rearranged wherever necessary .

Financing disclosure

A} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrewed funds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security ar the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) The Company has not received any funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity
{"Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Company do not have any transactions with company's struck off during the current and previous financial vear.

Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the boaks of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
current and previous financial year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961).

Detalls of Benami Property held

The Company does not have any Benami property. Further, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for halding any benami property under the
Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyend the statutory period as at March 31, 2023,

Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency

The Cempany have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year.

Disclosure for no wilful default
The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Significant accounting polices
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

In terms of our attached report of even date For & on behalf of Board of Directors
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:-329088% SD/- SD/-
Gautam Jatia Sujoy Chattaraj
Managing Director Director
SD/- DIN - 00604926 DIN - 08818352
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Bimal Kr Agarwal
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of EMAMI FRANK ROSS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of EMAMI
FRANK ROSS LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary( the Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group™) which comprise the consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
and based on the consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements and
on the other financial information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,as amended (“the Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian accounting
standards (“Ind AS™) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31st March 2023, their
consolidated loss including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows, and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. QOur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report, We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.




Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31
March, 2023. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our

report:

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

1) Identification and disclosures of
Related Parties (as described in
Note 30 of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements.

The Company has related party
transactions which include, amongst
others, sale and purchase of
goods/services to its related parties and
lending, investment and borrowing
to/from its related parties. |dentification
and disclosure of related parties was g
significant area of focus and hence
considered it as a Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures amongst others included
the following:

» Evaluated the design and tested the operating
effectiveness of controls over identification and
disclosure of related party transactions.

» Obtained a list of related parties from the
Company’s management and traced the related
parties to declarations given by directors, where
applicable, and to Note 30 of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

+ Read minutes of the meetings of the Board of
Directors and Audit Committee and traced related
party transactions with limits approved by Audit
Committee / Board.

* Read declarations of related party transactions
given to the Board of Directors and Audit
Committee.

+ Verified the disclosures in the standalone Ind AS
financial statements for compliance with Ind AS
24,




Key Audit Matters

Auditor's Response thereon

2) Existence and valuation of
Inventories.

The value of the Company's
inventories at year-end was °
8025.83lakh, representing
10.55% of the Company's total
assets. The existence of inventory
i5 a key audit matterdue to the
involvement of highrisk, basis the
nature of the retail industry wherein
valie per unit is relatively
insignificant but high volumes are
involved which are distributed
across different Point of Sales
and warehouses.

In response to this key matter, our audit included, among
others, the following principal audit procedures

Understood Management's control over physical inventory
counts and valuation

e Evaluation of the design and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to
physical inventory counts at the stores and the
warehouse. In testing this confrol, we observed the
inventory cycle count process on a sample basis,
inspected the results of theinventory cycle count and
confirmed that the variances were approved and
appropriately accounted for.

e Evaluation of the desigh and testing the operating
effectiveness of the internal controls relating to
purchases, sales and inventories including automated
controls

® We have also performed roll-forward and alternate
procedures on sample basis for establishing the
existence of inventory as at year-end by validating
purchases, sales, stockmovement of inventory during
the intervening period i.e. from the date physical
verification was done till the year end date.

e For a representative sample, verification that the
finished goods inventories were correctly measured,
using a recalculation of the measurement of those
inventories based on the cost of acquiring them from
suppliers and considering the costs directly
attributable to such geods.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the other information. Other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to
Board's Report, Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder Information but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

[f. based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation
of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the
Group in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecling frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind
AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process of the Group.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act,2013,we are also responsible for expressing our opinion
on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
t0 cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.




We also communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of the subsidiary, whose financial statements reflects
total assets of Rs 2.59 Lakhs as at 31% March ,2023, total revenues of Rs 2.07 Lakhs and net
cash inflows amounting to Rs 0.68 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub section(3) of the section 143 of
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the
other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013, we give in the Annexure “B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of
the Order.

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We / the other auditor whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
aforesaid consolidation of the financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and reports of the other anditors.

( ¢)The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated




Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial
statement.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act tead with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding company
as on 31% March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company
and the report of the statutory auditor appointed under section 139 of the Act of its
subsidtary company, none of the directors of the Group company 1s disqualified as on 31st
March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

(8) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the
requirement of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended -

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the
remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid/ provided by the Holding Company
to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

.. The Group has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated
financial statement.

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii. There has been no such sum which needs to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

lv. a) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have
represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company and its subsidiary to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or-its subsidiary




(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary have
represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in
the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
Company or any of its subsidiary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditor
of the subsidiary, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s attention that has
caused us or the other auditor to believe that the representations under sub-clause
(i) and (i) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year nor in the
previous year.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration Number —gifﬁ

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534

Date: 30" May, 2023
UDIN: 2306053y BGWAXLET 1O



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of
Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Emami Frank Ross
Limited (“the Holding Company™) as of March 31%, 2023 to the extent of records available
with us in conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the
Group for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Holding Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2023, based on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essentials components
of the internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance
Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent




applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statermnents, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial confrol over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.




Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to fiuture periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration Number — 329088E

< A Fond

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner

Place: Kolkata Membership No: 060534

Date: 30" May, 2023
UDIN: 23060534BGWXXL6970




ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief and based on the consideration of report of other auditor of
the subsidiary company , we state that:

(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report
on Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the consolidated
financial statements.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Number — 329088E

oo Toel—

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Place: Kolkata Membership No; 060534
Date: 30" May, 2023
UDIN: 23060534BGWXXL6970




Emami Frank Ross Ltd

Balance Sheet as at 3Ist March 2023

Bs in Lakhs
Asat As at
Particulars Notes
31gt March, 2023 31st March, 2022
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
a} Property, Plant and Equipment 21 4,003.12 408542
b) Capital work-in-progress 21 11.41 67.46
c) Other Intangible Assets 22 283.97 7297
d) Right of Use Assets 23 4,455.2%6 2,242 6}
e) Intangible Assets under Development 2.2 - 189.96
Goodwill on consideration 36.23 36.23
f} Financial assets
& Investments 3 693.28 702.20
{ii)y Cther Financial Assets [] 1,221.16 1,046.80
2 Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 7 3,560.91 3,29343
) Other non-current assets 8 23643 223.05
Total Non Current Assets 14,501.77 11,960.12
CURRENT ASSETS
a) Inventories 9 8,025.83 6,983.96
B) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivable 5 5,966.31 4,969.37
(i) Cashand cash equivalents 10 771.56 581.35
{ifi) Loans 2 46,506.58 19,431.35
{iv) Other Financial Assets 11 o =
c) Other current assets 12 367.07 254.67
Total Current Assets 61,637.35 32,220.70
TOTAL ASSETS 76,139.12 44,180.82
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital 13 408,27 20827
b) Other Equity 12 (6,677.69) (6,278.74)
Total Equity (6,269.42) (6,070.47)
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
aj Financial NHabilities
@  Botrowings 15 36,396.03 22,966.61
{i){a) Lease Liabilities 15 3.779.48 | 1,889.61
(i)  Other Financial Lisbilities 16 2418 2347
Total Non Current Liabilities 44,199.69 24,879.69
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities
()  Borrowings 15 34,905.67 20,890.37
(i)(a) Lease Liabilities 15 1,097.51 745.29
(i) Trade payables 18
(a) Total outstandjng.dues of Micro enterprises 43.53 43,99
and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than ;
&) Micro enterprises and small enterprises Sk 28870
[
() Other Financial Lisbilities 19 746,15 733.72
b) Other current liabifities 20 43,96 122.67
) Provisions 17 312.65 266.80
Total Current Liabilities 42,208.85 25,371.59
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 76,139.12 44,180.82

Significant accounting pollees

The accompanying notes ore an Integral por? of thesa financkal statements

In terms of owr oftached report of even date
For Agrawual Tendon & Co.

Charfered Accounfants

FRN;-32%08BE

so/-
Radhakrithan Tandan
Fariner
Membershlp NO. 050534

Dafed : 30-05-2023
Place : Kelkata

For & on behalf of Board of Mracters

so/- /-
Gautam laile Sufoy Chattaral
Managing Diractor Director
DIN - 00504925 DIN - 08818352
5D/-

Bimail Kr Agarwal
Chlef Financlal Officer

sD/-
Amiita Bhattacharya
Compony Secratary
Membership No.- A53270



Emami Frank Ross Ltd

Statement of Frofit & Loss
For the year ended 31st March 2023
Rs in Lakh
easTuARS o e IR
I |Revenue from Operations 21 55,166.08 49,682.14
II |Other Income 22 4,480.37 5,995.29
10 |Total Income (I+IT) 59,646.45 55,677.43
IV |Expenses:
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 4436457 37,771.11
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 {1,041.87) 950.42
Employee Benefits Expense 24 5464.38 4,783.84
Finance Costs 6,493.26 7,034.83
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 2 1,770.34 2,031.75
Other Expenses 26 3,253.80 3,563.54
Tetal Expenses (IV) 60,304.43 56,135.48
V |Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax (III-IV) (658.03) (458.05)
VI (Tax Expense:
Tax relating to earlier years 1.66 0.05
Deferred Tax 7 (266.59) (85.16)
VII | Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI) (393.10% {372.95)
VI |Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
i |Fair value changes in Equity instrument (8.93) (13.60)
ii |Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - 36.94
iii (Income Tax relating to above 322 (8.43)
Other Comprehensive income net of tax (5.71) 14.91
IX |Total Comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) (398.81) (358.03)
Earnings per equity share
i |Basic (Face value Rs. 10/- each} {16.88) (17.91)
ii |Diluted (Face value Rs.10/- each) (16.88) (17.91)

Significant accounting polices

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

In jerms of our attached repori of even date
For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountfants

For & on behalf of Board of Direclors

FRN:-329088E 5D/- Sp/-
Goutam Jatio Sufoy Chaitara]
5D/- Managing Director Director
Rodhaksrishan Tondon DIN - 00404924 DIN - DBB18352
Pariner
Membership NO. 040534
50/-

Dated ; 30-05-2023
Place : Kolkafa

Bimal Kr Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer

sD/-
Amrita Bhaftacharya
Company Secrefary
Membership No.- A53270



A Equity Share Capital

1

Emami Frank Ress Ltd
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March , 2023

Currenf reporting period (2022-23)
g . Restated balance at (Changes in equity
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting Si]::ée: ::lafg::fo the beginning of share capital ﬁlalance ittﬂ: ::i:f
period rior efio 4 errors the current during the current . erio dp &
priorp reporting period year P
208.27 200.00 408.27
Previous reporting period (2021-22)
3 ., | Restated balance at |Changes in equity
Balance at the beginning of the current reporting S(l:'x];::(g:? i]t‘afgzl:{u the beginning of share capital g_:mce i::hx: i:g:f
period rior efio r— the current during the current erio dp &
priorp reporting period year P
208.27 208.27
Other Equity
Reserves & Surplus Other Comprehensive Income -
Pastcutars Bquity | Remessurementof | yibcbicto | Non
Retained Earnings | General Reserve Instruments Defined Benefit owners of the | Controlling
through OCI Plans company interest
Balance at 31-03-21 (8,273.74) 2,124.67 160.75 3157 (5,920.68) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the financial year
2021-22
Fair value changes in Equity instrument = = (13.60 - {13.60) -
Tax Effect on above = = (0.74) - (0.74) -
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation - = - 36.94 36.94 -
Tax Effect on above = - - (7.69) (7.69) -
Profit/ (loss) for the year (372.95) - - - (37297 -
Balance at 31-03-22 (8,646.71) 213467 14642 50.82 (627878, =
Balance as on 01.04.2022 {8,646.71) 2,124 67 146.42 60.82 (6:278.74) -
Fair value changes in Equity instrument (8.93) (8.93) -
Tax Effect on above 3.22 3.22 -
Remeasurement of Defined benefit obligation - - -
Tax Effect on above 0.00 - -
Profit/ (loss) for the year (393.10) - - - (393.10) -
Balance at 310323 _ (9,859.81) 2,124.67 14071 60.52 (6,677.69) B

Significant accounting polices

The accompanying noles are an infegral part of these financial statements

In terms of our attached report of even date
For Agrawal Tenden & Co.

Chartered Accountants

FRN:-329088E

Radhakrishan Tondon
Partner
Membership N0, (60534

Dated : 30-05-2023
Place : Kolkata

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Gautam Jatia

Managing Director

DIN - 00604926

Sujoy Chattaraj
Director
DIN - 08818352

Bimal Kr Agarwal
Chief Financial Officar

Amrita Bhattacharya
Company Secretary
Membership No.- A53270



Emami Frank Ross Ltd
Cash Flow statement

For the year ended 31-March-2023

Rsin Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
A Cash flow from operating activities 202223 2021-22
Net Profit before tax (658.03) (455.60)
Adjustments for =
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,770.35 2,051.74
Dividend {0.80) (©.80)
Finance costs 6493.25 703495
Interest income (3,749.29 (5,408.69)
Provision for Doubtful Debts & Advances Written Back -
Profit/(loss) on sale /{disposal) of property, Plant & {1.73) (452.36)
equipment {net)
Lease Payments {2510.85) (1,31145)
Non cash items 1,054.67
1,322.93 2,490.01
Adjustments for working capital changes
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade Payables and Cther 232170 (383.83)
Liabilities
{Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories {1.041.87) 988.13
(Increass)/ Decrase in Trade Receivables {996.94) (1,197.91)
(Incresse)/ Decrease in Loans and Advances and other financial & {300.14) 196.55
non financial -
Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 44.86 9456
27.61 (30250)
Cash generated from gpreation 1,370.54 2,187.51
Less:- Direct Taxes paid/ (refund received)-Met (5.12) (54.03)
Net Cash flow from opearting activities 136542 | 213348
B Cash flow from Investing activities
Proceeds from Sale of Property,Plant & Equipment 1.32 864,61
Interest received 94.76 1,510.89
Dividend 80 0.80
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment (668.93}
Investment in optionally convertible debentures {425.00)
Loan {given)/ repayment received from others (23,518.75} 2852640
Fixed deposit made {0.53) 3224
Net cask used in investing activities {23,422.41) 29,541.01
|C Cash flow from Firancing activities
Repayment of Borrowings {7.505.57) (43,731.10)
Issue/ {redemption) of Non Convertible Debentures 10;500.00 -
Progeed from borrowing 25,747.00 19,241,00
Interest Including borrowing cost {6,493.25) (7.312.67)
Cash credit taken/ (repaici) {net) 96,79
Net cash used in financing activities 22;247.17 (31,899,56)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (A+B+C) BEISTRREToD 18] 7LI2
Add:- Cash & Cash Equivalents -Cpening balance 581,35 506.42
Cash & cash equivalents -Closing balance 77156 58135
Significant accounting polices
The accompanying nates are an integral part of these Enancial statements
In terms of our attached certificate of even date For & on hehaf of Board of Directors
For Agarwel Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:329088E sof- sDj-
Gautam Jatin Anurag Jatin
Managing Director Director
DN - 00604876 DIN - (1184328
sof-
Radhakrishan Tondon 50/~
Partner Bimal Kr Agarwal
Membership NO, (60534 Chief Finandial Officer
Dated  30-05-2023
Place : Kelkata SDf-
Amrita Bhattecharya
Company Sectetary

Membership No.- A55270
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3 Non Current Investmenis

a1

Rsin Lakhs

Fair Value as per indAS | Fair Value as per indAS

— —
Particulars 31sk March, 2023 31st March, 2022
A Investments carried at Cost - - =1
1 Investment in Equity Instraments {Unguoted
i Subsidiary
& Lyfresh Pyt Lid
E000000 Equity Shares of Rs [0/- each fully pawi up 660,00 600.00
Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment (600.00) - {6600.60) -
i Others |
a Medwo Assocnalion #
12 Shares* 242 042
Less:- Provision far chminution in value of investment {0.42) - (0.42) -
b All India Origin Chemists & Distiibutors Limited #
2000 Equity Shares of Rs, 10/- each lully paid up 0.26 0.20
Less:- Provision for diminulion in vatue of investment 0.20) - (0.20) -
< Sheppers Cily Maintenanee Co. P Lid #
19800 Equity Shares of Re.1/- each fully paid up 0.20 0.20
Less:- Prevision for diminution 1n value of investment {0.20} - (0.20% -
B [Investments carried at Fair Value through OCI
1 . Bhaltacharyya & Co. Private. Lintited 165.09 165.09
222 Equity Shares of Rs. 500/ - each Fully paid up
2 Midkot Investnient Pvt. Lid. - Note - 1 50.50 50.80
461825 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ - each fully paid up
Inyvestmenl in Equily Instruments (Quoted)
3 Emami Limited 35.86 44.78
10000 Equity shares of Bs.1/ - each fully paid up
4 Emami Realty Limited 0.20 .20
332 Shares of Rs 10/ - each fully pasd up
{
TataliA+B) 251,95 26087 |
© Invesiment i ence Shares (Unquoted)
Tavestments carried at amortised cost
Others
M. Bhatlacharyva & Co. Private Limited 16.33 1633
|
35000 10% Cumulative Preference Shares of ks 100/ -each fully paid up
Redeemable at par at any time within 20 years from date of issuc
) Fotal{C) - 16.33 10.33
D Investnient in Debenlures (Ungueted)

investments carried al amortised cosl

Others
M. Bhaltacharyya & Co. Privale Limited -Note- 2 425.00 425.00

425 Optionally Convertible Debentures of Rs 100000/ - each fully paid up
Redeamable on or Before 120 months from the date of Issue

Total(3) 425.00 425.00 |
e L e 2 = £93.28 702.20 |
7 - Aggregate vaiue of Quoted Investment and market value thereal S 36.06 44.98 |
Aggregate value of Unguoted Investiment 657.22 6h7.22 ’
#Aggregate provision far dimunilion in value of investments 600.82 600.82

* Formed under Bombay Mon - Tiading Corporations Act, 1959 not having Face value of Shares e

* For credit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 37

MNote-1

PAN emami to Midkot shares

viide Order of the Hon’ble Natianal Cornpany Law Tribunal [“NCLT"} order No. C.P. {CAA) Mo. 89/KB/2021 connected with C.A. [CAA) No. 1237/4B/2020 dated 15/11/2021 {"Order*}, Pan Emami Casmed Limited, Emami
Capital Markets Ltd.. TMT Viniyopan Ltd, Newway Constructions Ltd,, Karan Business Pvt. Ltd.. Zen Business Put. Lid., Sundew Finance Private Limited, Medal Chemical & Research Works Ltd, Sneha Aliasan Pwt. Ltd., Sneha
Niketan Byt Lt Ramshila Enterprise Pyvt. Ltd., and EFL Foods Limited {"Transferor Companies”) have been amalgamated Into and with Midkot Investments Private Limited {"Company”), with the appointed date of closing

haurs of husiness en 315t March, 2020, and effective date is 9th Decermnber, 2021

As on 31st March, 2022, the Company was halding 22750 nos. of equity shares of face value of Rs.10/- each of Pan Emami Cozmed Limited. Pursuant to the said schieme of amafgamation, during current financial year the
Company while exercising its cptlon has apted for 2030 equity shares against 100 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each af Pan Emami Cosmed Limited

ko, of Shares 461825

As per Pg 24 of NCLT order clause vif to every equity shareholder of PAN, the folfowing will be alloteed
100 Class B 8% NCOCRPS of Rs 10/- credited as fully paid up in the transferee company for every 100 equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up by such equity sharehalder in PAN

Or
2030 fully paid up equity shares of Rs 10/- each of Transferee company for every 100 fully paid up equity shares of Rs 10/- each held in PAN

As per Pg 26 of the Order clause 6.10 and 6.11
EFAL is required ta exercise either of the aptions to be provided in 3 notice wthin 25 days. In case option is riol excercised for any reason then OCRFS nesd ta be alleteed. Terms of OCRPS given in Order.

Nate-2
425 nos. Unserured Optionally Convertible Debentures # 100,000/ - each ssued by M Bhattacharya & co Pyt Lid. Date of allotment- 12-Jan-2022. The same is convertible inta equity al the option of the
issuer , or be redeemed any Hne within 120 months alter date of allotrment @ 2% premium.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rs in Lakhs
Loans 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Current
Loan
To Subsidiary

Consgidered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated

Credit impaired

Less:- Allowance for Doubtful debt

Less:- Balance written off during the vear
(Refer Note-22)

To related party

1,087.76
1,087.76

1,087.76

- (1,087.76)

Considered Good-Unsecured unless otherwise stated * " 69.25
{Refer Note-30)
To others
Considered Good-Unsecured unless gtherwise stated 46,506.58 19,362.09
Total Current- A 46,506.58 19,431.34
Total Loans {4) 46,506.58 19,431.34

* since received .

Trade receivables 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Current
Considered good -Unsecured* - -
‘Related party 2,073.04 1,195.71
:Others 3,893.26 5,966.31 3,773.66 4,969.37
Credit impaired 7.09 7.09
Less:- Allowance for doubtful debts and advances (7.09) (7.09)
Total Current -A 5,966.31 4,969.37

*- For eredit risk and provision for loss allowance refer note no 37

Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31st March, 2023

Particulars

UOatstanding for the followisg peried from duc date of payments

Less than 6 months

6 months - 1 year 1-2 yeara

2-F years

More than 3 years

Total

(i} Undisputed Trade Reegivable - Considered Good

5,621.55

175.16 93.01

52.65

2393

5,966.31

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant merease in credit risk

1 Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired

(i) ndisp

7.09

7.09

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considersd Good

(v} Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increass in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired

TOTAL

5,621.55

175.16 23.01

s2.65

23.93

5,966.31
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Notes to Financiai Statements

Rs in Lakhs
Trade Receivables Ageing - As at 31=t March, 2021
Outstanding for the following period from due date of pryments
Particolars Total
Lesa than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Move than 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Congidered Good 4,716.22 95.16 78.18 32.81 46.99 4,969.37
(ii} Undisputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired 709 7.09
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivable - Considered Good -
{v) Disputed Trade Receivable - Which have significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivable - Credit Impaired .
TOTAL 4,716.22 as.16 78.18 32.81 46,99 4,989.37
Other Financial Assets 31st March, 2023 31at March, 2022

Security Deposits

Security Deposits-Trade 1,209.97 1,036.13
Other Advances
Fixed Deposits pledged with Banks {including interest 11.19 10.67
accruedl*

Total 1,221.16 1,046.80

*. Lien marked towards Bank Guarantee




{16°095°e) 958 {c0*go) {oe'0z8z) (z5'8p) s0°1e) CLOT-TEIN-TE
3¢ se-(3955V )/ SaRIIqeI] Xe 1 PaLBa(] 19N
{og°1g} 5 = - - - JIRURHRU 3P IV PPV
(17 ees’e) 956 {50 8g9) (DE028T) (z5°8) (Go'1e) €20 "YITRIN ISIE IE SV
5 : = - - - Ambyg oo v pesnuossy
(68°0) (680 = - = - atmoduy sarsuayardwo)y Py Ul pasTuioay
{65992} 3 {60P91) (61TT) {oz'er) 69°6E 860'] 3 3J04] Ul pasmudonoy
{paapang)fpafieyy
zeoz ‘Tudy 1012 sv
(€r'e6z’e) Sh'67 (96’267} (11'569°7) {zese) #6'99) (1985Y)/ senmIqer] Xe, paunjad 1B
{05°1€) g - = = . JuSWR[YUY 1P LV -PPY
(£6'T92°€) ST'6T (96'c6¥) (11°6697%) (zece) {¥6°99} TE0T "JITEIN I5TE 1¢ Sy
= = = - = - Aymbg roqQ u pasruBooay
g (€T - - YRS - WO AU W)Y IO UT PasnIZondy]
(91°58) 2 (80°T9Y) 86'0EL (s0'ee) (t0'sg) 8507 77 31J0 ] Ut pasnrdonay
{panrpaa))/fpalrey)
120z ‘TudVv 1038 5y
®ioL sareys Amba-(1DOAL) ESNREUND SeraL uoneEHao UM mamomh.w_”“ 10J pajonpap (53955V)/5onIIquYT XU, PALIDJA(] UL JUSWIAAGIA
81385V [RIUEDL] uoyeraxdag paqiosqenn) ugQ) J3ousg pAIaQ SR JOU} SUOISIALL/EOBIEIT g :
(zv'e6Ts) (16'095°¢) (19N) (essv)/seumiqer xer, psuajaq
(0g1€) (05°1£) JUSWSRIUL IpATD) TV ~ PPV
(£6°192°6) (1¥'629°€) (s501)) (1ossv)/SaNIMIqET] XeL parayacy
160 E L6°LSSE §1985Y Xe[, pasigjRQ]
6L 98°8¢ Ampqer) xey paxsayag]
CCRN-TE EC-TRN-TE SXEJTILIE]
BaXe ], PoLa(] Wl SHIAMIAOIAL
P W 5y

hzmon
SIUSHSIESS [EDUERL] 0] S9I0p]




Note7(ii)

Effective tax reconciliation

Income Tax Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Current Tax . N
(Excess)/Short Provision for Earlier Years 1.67 0.06
Deferred Tax (266.60) (85.15)
Total Income tax Expense recognised in the current year (264.93) (85.09)|
The income tax expense can be reconciled
to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars March 31,2023] March

31,2022

Profit before tax {658.03) (458.05)
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Computed Tax Expense {165.61) (115.28)
Add/(Deduct) - -
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) 648.30 626.98
in calculating taxable income = -
Tax efftect of income which are not taxable (831.26) (979.79)
(Excess)/Short Provision for Earlier Years 1.67 0.06
Tax effect of certain temporary differences measured at lower rates 145.79 56.84
Others (63.82) 326.10
Total Income Tax Expensef(Credit) (264.93) (85.09)
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Notes to Financial Statements

Rs in Lakh
Other nen-current assets 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Capital Advances - 1.00
Advance to Directors - 26,68
Advance to Employees 26.69 2203
Other advances
Advance Against Purchase - E
Advance Against Expenses
To Related Party - -
Others 5 -
Prepaid Expenses 4.18 6.42
Rent paid in advance 205.56 166.92
Total 236.43 223.05
Inventories-At lowervt;i ::st.and Net realisable 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Stock- In-Trade 8,025.83 6,983.96
Total 8,025.83 6,983.96
Cash and cashk equivalents 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Balances with Banks
On Current Accounts 649.01 439.71
Other Bank Balance
Fixed Deposits with Banks [including interest 318 911
accreed)
Cash in hand 118.48 132.53
Total 771.56 581.35
Other Financial Assets 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Interest accrued but not due
To Subsidiary
Considered good-Unsecured unless otherwise
stated
Credit impaired 131.00 131.00
131.00 131,00
Less: Provision for Doubtful debt (131.00) - -
- 131.00
Less:- Balance written off during the year - - (131.00) -
[ Refer Note 22]
Totil = =
Other current assets 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Agdvarnce to Directors - 10.39
Advance to Employees 45.72 35.74
Considered good Unsecured
Insurance Claim Receivable 3311
Advance against Purchase 8.36 7.56
Advarnces with Statutory Authorities 189.06 128.38
Prepaid Expenses 53.28 48.51
Advance against Expenses 37.54 24.09
Total 367.07 254.67
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Notes to Financial Statements

14 Other Equity

b)

Rs in Lakh
As At As At
Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
2023 2022
Reserves & Surplus {6,879.22) (6,485.97)
Includes General Reserves and retained earnings.
Other Comprehensive Income 201.53 207.23
Includes re-measurement gains/losses on defined benefit
plans and gain/loss on fair value of investments
Total (6,677.69) (6,278.74)
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Rs in Lakh
Financial Liabilities 31.st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Burrowings
Term Loans- Secured
From Banks # 26,313.63 18,154.53
Lessi- Current Maturities 11,299.23 15,014.40 6,424.23 13,730.30
Non-Convertible Debentures
Secured 10,500.00
Unsecured %,017.95 11,236.31
Total 19,517.95
Less:- Current Maturities 12,936.31 6,581.63
Optionally Convertible Debentures-Unsecured ### 14,800.00
Total-Borrowings-(i} =36, 3 22,966.61
L Liability:
Long Term Maturities of Lease Obligation 3,779.48 1,889.61
Total-Lease Liability-(i){z) 3,77948 1889.61
Total-Non Current- A 40,175.51 24,856.22
Borrowings
Loans Repayable on Demand
Secured Loan from Banlks
Cash Credit [ Note 15.1] [717.88) B25.14
Working Capital Demand Loan [ Note 15.1] 6,400.00 5,682.12 4,400.00 5,225.14
ecu)
Related Party 4,288.00 %,241.00
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 15,935.55 6,424.23
[Refer Note 15]
Total-Borrowlngs-{i} 36,605.67 20,890.37
Lease Liability ;
Current Maturities of Lease Obiigation 1,097.51 745.29
Total-Lease Liability-(i} (a) 1,097.51 745.29
Total-Current-B 37,703.18 21,635.66
okl BnmwM-bB} 77,878.69 46,491.88
# Refer Note 29

Bank-1 -Cash Credit And Working Capital Demand Loan are secured primarily by way of hypethecation on the entire Current
Assets of the company existing and future comprising of Stock-in-trade, receivables, book debts and vther current assets. These
Ioans are further secured Collateraly by way of Hypothecation / mortgage on all fixed assets (excluding vehicles ) of the
company, hoth present and future.

Bank-2 -Subservient charge by way of Hypothecation over entire Current asset & moveable Fixed assets of the company (both
present & future). Alse, exclusive charge by way of pledge of shares of promater shareholder and also coprporate guarantee by a
promoter shareheider

\ii..._ sy e e e Hion G5 — ____ i
The company has issued 980 listed secured Rated & 220 unlisted secured Rated redeemable & non convertible debentures of face value of As 10,00,000/- each on private
piacement basls aggregating ta Rs 120 crores [98 crores +22 crores) during FY22-23 in of articles of {ation of and as appraved by board of directors
ofthe company.

The coupen related to NCDs will be linked to and be equivalent to average of 1year MCLR (ie. Marginal Cost of Funds Based Lending Rate) of 4 hanks viz. ICICI Bank, HDFC
Bank, 5Bl and Bank of Baroda plus applicable Spread and shall be rasat on quarterly besls at the begining of =ach quarter { i.e. on April 1, July 1, October 2, and January | of
each year] As on date of executian of this Deed, the Coupon comprises of (i) the average 1-year MCLR as on April 1, 2022, of 7.20% p.a and [il] spread of 2.3% p.a

I— ' — . =
Tre company has restructure its fnances and has issued 14800 zero coupan unsecured optionally Convertible Debentures @ Rs 1,00,000/ each on preferential basis
amuounting to 148 crores in FY 22-23 in pursuance of articles of iation of company and as app by hoard of directors and shareholders of the company.

The OCDs shall be optionally convertthle ntn the equity shares of the company and/ ar redeeemable at any time at the option of the issuer within a pericd of 10 years for
the date of allotment. The OCD shall be redeemed within a period of 30 days after the expirey of 10 years i. at the end of tenure of the OCD if not converted into equity
shares.

Each debenture holders shali be entitled to be present at the meeting of dekenture halders and vote on any resolution whith affects their rights & Interest shall be payable
yearly @ 1% on the paid up vaiue of debantures as on 31st march , each year.

Other Financial Liabilities 315t March, 2023 31ist March, 2022
Interest due to MSME 1.68 0.97
Deposit against rent 22.50 22.50
Total Nom Current 24.18 Z3.47
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Notes to. Financial Statements Rsin Lakh
Provisions 31st March, 2023 31stMarch, 2022
Provision for Empl Benefit
For Gratuity 182.06 143.04
For Leave 130.07 31213 123.76 266.80
Other short term provision 0.52
Total 312.65 | 266.B0
Trade payables 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Total ou'tstandmg dues of Micro enterprises and small 4253 43.99
enterprises
Total ogtstandmg dues of crec!xtors other than Micro 5,058.38 2,568.75
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 5,101.91 2,612.74
eing - As
Ou ding for the follewing period from due date of payments
Particulars TOTAL
Less than 1 year 1-2 yeary 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 55,22 033 0.24 - 55.78
(if) Others 2,356.48 2,408.07 17232 10925 5,046.13
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME
(i} Disputed dues - Others
TOTAL 2,411.70 2,408,40 172.56 109.25 5,101.91
bles Ageiny -
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments
Particulars TOTAL
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 1-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 4195 1.67 0.35 0.03 43.99
(i#) Others 2,378.25 103.79 40.53 45.09 2,568.72
(iii) Disputed daes - MSME
(iv) Disputed duss - Others
TOTAL 2,420.20 105.46 40.93 46.12 2,612.71
Other Financial Liabilities 31st March, 2623 31st March, 2022
Interest accrued but not due on Borrowings 271.16 82.69
Other Payables
Employee Expense 301,42 292.43
Creditors for Capital Goods (31.06) 53.47
Liabilities for Expenses 204.63 474.99 305.13 651.03
Total 746.15 733.72
Other current Habilities 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
Statutory Liabilities - 13.42
Advance from Customers 43.77 108.24
Other payable 119 1.01
Total 44.96 122.67
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Rs in Lakh
Revenue from Operations 2022-23 2021-22
Sale of Products 54,751.05 49,403.93
Other Operating Revenues
Rent 61.85 55.01
Income From Store Displays 307.04 198.14
Franchisee Fees 44,88 14.12
Facility Management Fees 1.26 415.03 10.94 278.21
Total 55,166.08 49,682.14
Other Income 2022-23 2021-22
Interest Income
Interest on Loan given 3,681.12 5,331.90
Interest on Others
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost 65.95 71.56
Interest on Deposit 218 3.80
Interest on Income Tax refund - 68.13 1.43 76.79
Discount Received 0.60
Income From Slump Sale 671.61
Dividend on Long Term Non-Trade Investment 0.80 0.80
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 1.73 444 64
Provision for Loans / Debts Written off -
Less : Adjusted against Provision - - .
Insurance Claim 33.11 0.33
Compensation-Business Claim - -
Liabilities Written Back 4.22 116.71
Miscellaneous Receipts 19.05 24712
Total 4,480.37 5,995.29
Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 2022-23 2021-22
(I} Opening Inventory 6,983.96 7,934.38
(1) Closing Inventory 8,025.83 6,983.96
(Increase)/Decrease (1,041.87) 950.42
Employee Benefits Expense 2022-23 2021-22
Salaries and Wages 4,949.67 4,310.61
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 380.61 352.20
Staff Welfare Expense 134.10 121.03
Total 5,464.38 4,783.84

*Being Sale of business at Chennai under "Starmark" division.
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Rs in Lakh
Finance Costs 2022-23 2021-22

Finance cost on Lease obligation 454.77 128.05
Interest Expense- Non Convertible Bonds 2,132.36 1,427.97
Interest to Banks , Working capital Loans , Interest on 3,332.97 5,069.19
Unsecured loans Eic.
Other Borrowing Costs 573.16 409.62

Total 6,493.26 7,034.83

Other Expenses 2022-23 2021-22

Power & Fuel 323.31 289.43
Rent & License Fees 506.07 447 89
Repairs to Building 13.18 -
Maintenance Charges 666.04 629.18
Security Charges 61.52 54.34
Insurance 11.18 27.01
Rates & Taxes 119.55 113.93
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 19746 106.47
Commission 69.91 54.30
Professional & Legal Charges [Refer note - 27] 530.24 22545
Internet and other communication expenses 71.38 68.95
Loss on sale / discard of Fixed Assets 1.46 9.76
Balances written off - 981.50
Miscellaneous Expenses 682.49 555.32

Total 3,253.80 3,563.54
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Rsin Lakh
27 Payment To Auditors
BEHCLIE Year ended 31st Year ended 31st March
March 2023 2022

Audit Fees 12.54 12.54
|Tax Audit Fees 0.96 0.96
Limited Review 1.50 1.50
Other Services 5.92 0.12
Total 20.92 15.12

28 Information for Earnings per share as per IND AS 33

Particulars As at 31st March 2023| As at 31st March 2022
Net Profit (393.10) (372.95)
Weighted average number of shares 23,29,282 20,82,707
Earnings per share - Basic & diluted (16.88) (17.91)




Matws to Financlul Statements

RsIn Lak
Detuils of Sorrowinps:-
Details of Term Lowns from Bank
5. [Typacfioan 1ncn w3 on I1-Merd? Security Amount outstanding Amout outstamding
Ka, &% o0 31 Mar2d a3 on SL.Merg2
1 ‘Working Cagital_term 9,25% p.a on custanding |NR Secand chargs over all existing primary & collateral Principal zmount 1,775 248
Loan-Under ECLGS of securltfas Including mortagages ¢reated in favour of the Repayment Schaduls Repayment Selwedula
NCGTC bank, sutject to the subs/sting charges created over Date Amount Date Armount
various primary gnd collaters| sacurities, Including 30-Apr-23 5546 30-Apr-22 55.46
securities charged by third parties, 31-May-23 55.46 | 31-May-22 55.46
30-Jun-23 55.45 [ 30-Jun-22 55.46
31-Jul-23 55.46 31-Jul-22 55.45
31-Aug-23 55.46 | 31-Aug-22 55.46
30-Sep-23 55.46 | 30-Sep-22 55.46
31-Cct-23 55.46 31-Oct-22 55.46
30-Nov-23 55.46 | 30-Nov-22 55.46
31-Dec-23 535,46 31-Dec-22 55.46
3i-dJan-24 §5.46 | 31-Jan-23 5546
29-Feb-24 56.46 | 2B-Feb-23 55.46
31-Mar-24 55,46 | 31-Mar-23 55.46
30-Apr-24 55.46 | 30-Apr-23 55.46
31-May-24 55.46 | 31-May-23 55.46
30-Jun-24 5546 | 30-Jun-23 55.46
31-Jul-24 55.46 31-Jul-23 55.46
31-Aup-24 5546 | 31-Aug-23 55.46
30-Sep-24 5546 | 30-8ep-23 55.46
31-Dct-24 55.46 | 31-0ct-23 533.46
30-Nov-24 55,46 | 30-Nov-23 55.46
31-Dec-24 §5.46 | 31-Dec-23 55.46
31-Jan-25 55.46 | 31-Jan-24 55.46
28-Feh-25 55.46' | 29-Feb-24 55.46
31-Mar-25 55.46 | 31-Mar-24 55.46
30-Apr-25 55.46 | 30-Apr-24 55.46
31-May-25 5546 | 31-May-24 55.46
30-Jun-25 55.46 | 30-Jun-24 55,46
31-Jui-25 55.46 31-Jul-24 55.46
3I-Aug-25 3546 | 31-Aug-24 55.46
30-Sep-25 55.46 | 30-Sep-24 55.46
31-0ct-25 55.46 | 31-Oct-24 55.46
30-Nov-25 55.46 | 30-Nov-24 55.46
31-Dec-24 a5.46
31-Jan-25 55.46
28-Feb-25 55.46
31-Mar-25 55.46
30-Apr-25 55.46
31-May-25 55.46
30-Jun-25 3546
31-Jul-25 55.46
31-Aug-25 55.46
30-Sep-25 55.46
31-Oct-25 55.46
30-Nov-25 55.46
2 Term Lean-Rupee Iyr MCLR+0.45% - At present-9.10% p.a | Subservient charge by way of hypothecation aver entire [Princlpal amount 333 667
on outstanding INR turrent asset and moveable fixed asset of the company Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedute
[both present and future). The same is further secured by Data Amount Date Amount
pledge of sharas by a promoter shareholder .Further 01-Jun-23 83 0l-Jun-22 83
secyred by way of corporate guarantee of a promoter 0:-Sep-23 83 01-Sep-22 83
01-Dec-23 83| 01-Dec-22 a3
0i-Mar-24 &3 | 01-Mau-23 83
0l-Jun-23 83
01-Sep-23 83
01-Dec-23 a3
01-Mar-24 83
a Term Loan-Rupee 15% .2 on oulstanding INR First Charge by way of Hypothecstion / morigage on all |Principal amount 1,200 2,175
the fixed assats (mavable and Immovable] of the Repayment Seheduls Repayment Schedute
company, both present and future excluding Dats Amoumnt Cate Amount
Vehleles..The same is further secured by pledge of shares 30-Jun-23 300 30Jun-22 225
by a promater sharsholder 30-5ep-23 A0 30-5ep-22 225
A0-Dec-I3 450 31-Dec-22 225
31-Mar-23 300
3-Jun-23 300
30-Sep-23 450
30-Dec-23 450
a4 ITerm Loan-Rupes 15%p.3 on outstanding INR 1st Charge by way of Hypathecation / mortgage on all the] Princlpal 2rmount 2100 4,550
fixed assets (movable and Immovable] of the company, fepaymant Schedule Repayment Schedule
both present and future excluding Vehicies. The same is Oate Amount Data Amownt
further secured by pledge of shares by a promotar 30Jun-23 2,050 30-Jun-22 525
shixehuldey 28-Sep-23 1,050 30-Sep-22 525
31-Dec-22 700
31-Mar-23 700
30-Jun-23 1,050
28-5ep-23 1,050
5  |Term Lozn-Rupee 15%p.8 on outstanding INR 1st Charge by way of Hypothecatton / mortgege on all tha|Principal amount 6,499 8,50
fixed 2ssets (movable and Immovable) of the company, Fepayment Sehaduls Repayment Schedula
both present and futura excluding Vehicles. .The same Is Date Amount tata Amount
further secured by pledge of shares by & promoter A0-Apr23 167 30-Apr-22
shareholder 31-May-23 167 | 31-May-22




0]

30-Jun-23 167
31-Jul-23 167
31-Aug-23 167
30-Sep-23 167
31-0ct-23 167
30-Nov-23 167
31-Dec-23 167
31-Jon-24 i57
29-Feb-24 is7
F-Mar24 167
I-Apr-24 167
31-May-24 167
30-jun-24 167
31-Jul-24 157
3-Aug-24 167 | 31-Aug-23
30-Sep-24 167 | 30Sep23
31-Oct-24 1e7 31-0ct-23
30-Nov-24 187 30-Nov-23
31-Cec-24 167 | 31-Dec-23
31-Jan-25 167 | 3l1-Jan-24
Z8-Feb-25 67
31-Maor-25 187
J0-Apr-25 167
31-May-25 167
30-Jun-25 167
31-Jul-25 167
31-Aug-25 187
A-Sep-25 167
31-Dct-25 167
30-Nov-25 167
31-Dec-?25 a7
3t-den-24 167
28-Feb-24 167
31-Mor-24 167
30-Apr-26 167
31-May-26 167
30-Jun-24 165
3C-Nov-25
31-Dec-25
31-Jan-26
28-Feb-26
31-Mar-26
30-Apr-26
31-May-26
HRhun-26
] Rated unlisted 124 intarest p.a 112.5 8onds lssued 2t face valur of Rs L1cr each repayable | Princ/pat amount 11,250 11,250
Redeemable Nen- by way of bullet repayment on the expiry of the term of Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
Convertible Debentures debenture | Secured by way of pledge of shares by tate Amount Data Amount
promoter sharehalding and also guaranteed by a 10-iul-24 11,250 1C-Jul-23 11,250
promoter shareholder. Alsa, hypathecation over a
designated account .
Total Ourstanding as at yewr snd-Frincipal 22,157 28,582
Total Outstarding as at year gnd-amortised cost &9 per INDAS 28,416 25,591
Currart Maturities-Princtpal 17,549 5,275
St [type of loan RO axon 31-Mar-23 Security Ammimt outstanding Amenit autstanding
No. as on 31-MMer-28 23 on 31-Mar-22
1 Term Loan-Rupee 10.25%| First charge by way of Hypothecetion / martgage on 2ll |Principal amaunt 7,291.67 -
the fixed sssets {movable and Immovable} of the Repayment Schedule Repayment Schadule
company, hoth present and future.Second charge by way Dats Amount Date Amaurt
of hypotecation of the entire Current assets of the 30-Apr-23 208.33
campany, existing and future, comgrising , Inter aliz, of 31-May-23 208,33
stocks of raw material, work In progress, finished goods, A0-Jun-23 208.33
recelvables, book debts nad other current assets. 21-Jul-33 208.33
31-Aug-23 208.33
30-Sep-23 20833
31-Oct-23 208.33
30-Nov-23 208,33
31-Dec-23 268.33
31-Jan-24 208.23
29-Feb-24 208,33
31-Mar-24 208.33
30-Apr-24 208.33
31-May-24 208,33
30-Jun-24 208.33
31-Jul-24 208.33
31-Aug-24 208.33
30-Sen-24 208.33
31-0ct-24 208.33
30-Nov-24 208.33
31-Dec-24 20B.33
3l-Jan-25 208.33
28-Feb-25 208.33
31-Mar-25 208.33
30-Apr-25 208.33
31-Mey-25 208.33
30-Jun-25 208.33
31-Jui-25 208.33
3i-Aug-25 208.33
30-3ep-25 208.33
31-0ct-25 208.33
30-Nov-25 208.33
31-Dec-25 208.33
31-Jan-26 208.33
28-Feb-26 208.33




Term Loan-Rupez 10.25%| Flrstcharge by way of Hypothecation / martgags on all |Frincipal amount 719167
the fixad assets (movebla and Immaovable) of the Repayment Scheduls Repayment Sehadule
company, bath present and future Second charge by way Date Amount Cate Amount
af hypotecation of the entira Current assets of the 30-Apr-23 208,33
comgany, existing and future, comprising, Tnter alfa, of 31-May-23 a08.33
stocks of raw material, wark n progress, finished goads, 30-Jun-23 208.33
31-Jul-23 208.33
31-Aug-23 208.33
30-8ep-23 208.33
31-Oct-23 208.33
30-Nov-23 208.33
31-Dec-23 208.33
31-Jan-24 208.33
29-Feb-24 206.33
31-Mar-24 208.33
30-Apr-24 208.33
31-May-24 208.23
30~Jun-24 208.33
3i-Jul-24 208.33
dl-Aug-24 208.33
30-Sep-24 208.33
31-Oct-24 208.33
30-Nov-24 208.33
31-Dec-24 208.33
31-Jan-25 208.33
28-Feb-25 208.33
31-Mar-25 208.33
30-Apr-25 208.33
31-May-25 208.33
30-Jun-25 208.33
31-Jul-25 208.33
31-Aug-25 208.33
30-Sep-25 208.33
31-Cet-25 208.33
30-Nov-25 208.33
31-Dec-25 208.33
31-Jan-26 208.33
28-Feb-26 208,33
Q
Bond Listed 48 Cr 10.25%p.2 on outstanding INR Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICIC! Bank,  [Princlpal amount 3,300
{INETLIXGP070) HDFC Bank, S8 & Bank of Barcda plus 2pplicable spread Repayrait Sehaduls Repayment Scheduls
rates Date Amount Date Amount
30-Jun-23 500
30-Sep-23 600
31-Dec-23 600
21-Apr-24 1,600
Bond Listed 10:25%p.2 on outstanding INR Average of I year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank,  [Princlpal amount 4,200
(INE?11X070672) HODFC Bank, 581 & Bank of Barods plus applicable spread Repaymant Schadula Repayment Sehadula
rates Date Amount Tate Amount
30-Jun-25 3
30-5ep-25 600
31-Dec-25 600
31-Mar-26 500
30-lun-26 600
30-5ep-26 600
31-Dec-26 600
Bond tisted 10.25%p.a on outstanding INR Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank, | Principal amount BOO
{INE721X07054) HDFC 8ank, 5B) & Bank of Baroda plus applicable spraad Repayment Schedule Repayment Schedule
rates Date Amount Date Amopunt
Ac-lun-24 400
30-5ep-24 400
Q
Bond Unkisted 10.25%p.4 on outstanding INR Average of 1 year of MCLR of 4 Banks viz. ICICI Bank,  |Princlpal amount | 1,000
[INEY11XG7088) ROFC Bank, 5B1 & Bank of Baroda plus appliaible spread Repayment Schedule Repaymant Scheduly
raftes Gats Ampunt Date Amount
31-Dec-24 500
31-Mar-25 500
Q
Bord UnListed 10.25%p.a3 on outstanding INR Average of 1 year of MCLA of 4 Banks viz. iCIC) Bank,  |Princfpal amount 12,50,00,000
(INET11X07058) HDFC Bank, 581 & Bank of Barcda plus appltcable spread Rupayrsnt Schedule Repaymeant Schedule
Aty Date Ameount Bute Amaunt
32-Mar-27 600
30-Jun-27 BOC
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Notes to Financlal Statements

Related Party DMsclosura

Subsidiary

Lyfresh Pvt Ltd- wholly owned subsidiary

Key Mapagerial Personnel & Other Directors

Key Manaperlal Persennel

Mr Gautam Jatia Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr Sujay Chattaraj Wholetime Director

Ms Chadaravalli Srinivasa Bhatta Nalini Wholetime Director

Mr. Anurag [atia Wholetime Director

Mr, Amit Agarwal [ Joined w.e.f 02-05-2022 & resigned on 13-01.2023 ] Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Akhilesh Agarwal [ resigned w.e.f31-03-2022 ] Chief Financial Officer

Mz, Bimal Agarwal [ Jeined we.f 20-04-2023 ] Chief Financial Officer

Ms Amrita Bhattacharya Company Secretary

Dther Directors

Mr, Debashish Bhaumik Independent Director

Mr. Pramod Kumar Shah Independent Director

Mrs Karahi Sengupta Independent Director

Relatives of Key Mangerial personnel

Mr. R.K. Jatia {Upte 31.02.2023-Demise)

Mrs Vandana jatia

Mrs Neeta Agarwal( Upto 31-03-2022)

Entities having significant influence over the group

Midkot Investments Private Limited [ Company was an associate of the Entity upto 14.02.2023. Now a promoter campany]

Suraj Finvest Private Limited [ name changed from Sneha Gardens Pvt. Ltd. ] [ Company is an associate of the Entity ]

Diwakar Finvest Private limited ( formerly known as Sneha enclave private Itd )[ Company is an associate of the Entity |

Other related parties with which Company has transaction

AMRI Hospitals Ltd.

Archana promaoters & Developers Pvt Ltd

Emami Agrotech Ltd.

Emami Capital Markets Ltd (Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11-2022)

Karan Business Pvt. Ltd (Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd - Date - 15-11-2022)

Emarmi Realty Ltd.

Emami Art Pyt Ltd

Emami Ltd.

Emami Paper Mills Etd.

Emami Foundation

M Bhattacharyya & Co. Pvt. Ltd.

New Way constructions 1td (Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd-Date-15.11-2022)

Niramay Distributors Pvt Ltd.

PAN Emami Cosmed Ltd . (Merged with Midkot Investment Pvt Ltd-Date-15-11-2022)

Premier Ferro Alloys & Securities Ltd.

Shepper's city maintenance company Pyt td

South city Projects Kotkata Ltd.

Shri Prashant Goenka

Nayee Disha Communications Pyt Itd

Shri Jayant Goenka

Smt Pritl A Surelcha

SGN Retail Pvt Ltd

Diwakar Finvest Private limited ( formerly known as Sneha enclave private Itd }

Detals of Related Party Transactions Rs in Lakh

Description of refationship Nature of For the Financial year Amount outstanding **
with party Transacton 2022-23 2021-22 Ason 31.03.23 Ason 31.03.22

Key Manaperial Persennel Salary 168.89 262.54 - -
Perquisites 19.11 i3.19 = -
Sale of Fixed Assets - 32.53 - -
Rent Received - 034 " 0.34
Loans & Advance Given 5.07 43.91 - 37.51

Other Directors Sitting fees 2.75 2.30 - -
Salary 12.48 11.29 - -

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel |(Perauisites 1.99 8.61 - -
Retainership 64.00 37.80 c =

QOther Entities Sale of Goods 11,386,97 8,286.06 2,073.04 1.195.71
Display Charges 35.37 19.64 - -
Rent Recaived 647 040 - -
Ambulance Hire Charges - 6.16 - -
Reimbursement of exp-Income - 313 - -
Purchase of Assets 534 3000 - -
Purchase of Goods $,946.52 7:495.85 | {70.53) (93.87)
Guarantee Commission Paid 13854 117.75 f21.76) (40.38)
Interest on Loan taken 1,023.66 2419.89 £25347} (82.69)
Rent & maintenance paid 344,65 212.70 - (857)
Rayalty 11.80 10.00 - =
Electricity Charges 34.47 13.24 {13.07) (6.42)
Advt & Sales pramotion - 218 - 7.89
Interest on Loan Given 1.6 335.62 - -
Advance/Deposit given - 325,00 102 102
Reimursment of exp 387.13 368.61 - -
Loan Given - 4,065.00 | - 69.25
Lean Given refunded 69,25 1Z,462.00 - -
Loar Taken 32,164.00 51,026.00 [4,988.00) (9,241.00)
Loan Taken refund back 36,417.00 41,785.00 - ' =

**. Figures in brackets denote Credit Balance
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Not inancial Sta
Rs in Lakh

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it
is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Therefore, Net Deferred Tax Asset of Rs 3560.93 lakhs (P.Y.- Rs.3293.43 lakh) has been recognised till date
in the accounts in compliance with IND AS 12 on" Income Taxes”

Contingent Liabilities & Commitnents :-

ontingent Liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Bank Guarantees 476.95 403.04

Contingent Liability disclosed above represents possible obligations where the possibility of cash outflow
to settle the obligation is remote.

Commitments

Estimated amount of Commitment not provided - Rs. Nil.

Assets given on Operating Lease

The company has given assets under non-cancellable operating lease . The total lease rent received on the
same is Rs 0.40 Lakh- [ P.Y - Rs 0.40 Lakh ]

The minimum future lease rentals receivable in respect of non-cancellable lease as at 31-March-23 are as
under:

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Lease contributions for the year 0.40 0.40
Minimum Lease payment contributions
-Not later than one Year 0.40 0.40
-Later than one year but not later than five years 2.00 2.00
-Later than 5 years 13.20 13.60
en gn ating Lease

The company has taken shops on rent.The total minimum lease payments and present value of minimum
lease payments are as follows:-

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
o ] Present value off] Minimum | Present value of|
Particulars Minimum i s
oo oenatwils Minimum lease Lease Minimum lease
paym payments payments payments
-Not later than one Year 1,512.09 1,097.51 1,026.83 745.29
-Later than 1 Year 5,088.27 3,779.48 2,543.95 1,889.61

The difference between minimum lease payments and the present value of minimum lease payments of Rs. 1698.21 lakh (P.Y-
Rs 935.88 lakh) represents interest not due ,
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Notes to Financial Statements

Defined benefit plan
Defined benefit plan {Gratuity}

Rs in Lakhs

35.1

Gratuity: The Company has a defined Gratuity Plan for its employees. Every employee who has completed five years or more of
service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary {last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The Scheme is funded
with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2023 | Year ended 31st March 2022
Gratuity Gratufty
Funded Funded
A |Components of Employer Expenses
1 |Current Service Cost 86.06 70.94
2 |Past service Cost - -
3 |loss/{Gain) on settlement - -
4  |Net interest Income/(cost) on the net defined benefit liability 10.44 7.10
(Asset)
5 |Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 96.50 78.04
B |Net asset/{liability) recognised in balance sheet as at 31st
March 2023
1 |Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 641.95 572.11
2 |Fairvalue of plan assets 459.90 429.07
3 |Funded Status [Surplus/{deficit)] (182.06) {143.04)
4 |Net asset/(liability) recognised in balance sheet {182.05) (143.04)
C [Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended
31st March 2023
1 |Presentvalue of DBO at beginning of period 572.11 520.75
2 [Current Service Cost 86.06 70.94
3 |Interest Cost 41.76 3593
4 [Re-measurement (or actuarial){gain)/loss arising from - -
-Change in demographic assumptions - -
-Change in financial assumptions 7.61 {26.92)
-Experience variation (i.e Actual experience vs assumptions) {10.31) (9.21)
5 [Past Service cost - -
6 |Benefits Paid {55.27) {19.38)
7 |Acquisition adjustment -
8 |Effect of business combinations or disposals -
7 |Present value of DBO at the end of period 641.96 572.11
D [Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 |Fairvalue of Planned assets at beginning of period 429.06 417.28
2 [Investment income 31.32 28.83
3 |Employer's contribution 57.51 0.93
4 |Benefits paid (55.27) (19.38)
5 [Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net {2.73) 0.80
interest expense
6 [Acquistion adjustment
7  |Fair value of Plan assets at end of the period 459,89 429.06
E |Other Comprehensive Income
1 |Actuarial {gains)/Losees
-Changes in demographic assumptions - -
-Changes in financial assumptions 7.61 {26.92)
-Experience variance (i.e Actual experience vs assumptions} {10.31) {9.21)
2 |Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net 2.73 {0.80)
interest expense
3 |Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other 0.03 (36.94)

comprehensive income




The Major categories of plan assets as a % of total plan assets

Year ended 31st March 2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

Fund managed by insurer

100%

100%

Assumptions

Year ended 31st March 2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

Financial assumptions

Discount rate %

Rate of increase in salaries

Demographic assumptions

Mortality rate (% of IALM 2012-14)

Normal retirement age

Attrition rates, based on age(% p.a) for all ages

7.30%
9% p.a

100%
58 years
2% p.a

7.30%
9% p.a

100%
SByears
2% p.a

iv |Sensitivity analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate expected salary increase
and mortality . The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonable possible changes of the assumptions
occuring at the end of the reporting period , while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given
helow:-
Revenue from operation Year ended 31st March 2023 | Year ended 31st March 2022
Defined henefit obligation base 641.95 572.11
Year ended 31st March 2023 | Year ended 31st March 2022
Particulars Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
a |Discount rate (-/ +1%) 726.24 571.66 643.28 512.59
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 13.13% 10.95% 12.44% -10.40%
b [Salary growth rate (-/ +1%) 572.61 722.98 514.33 639.8
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) -10.80% 12.62% -10.10% 11.83%
¢ |Attrition rate (-/ +50%) 654.5 630.97 581.66 563.74
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 1.95% -1.71% 1.67% -1.46%
d |Mortality rate (-/ +10%) 643.45 640.48 573.26 570.97
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.23% -0.23% 0.20% -0.20%
The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in defined benefit obligation as It is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated .
v Effect of plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
a) Funding arrangements and funding policy
The company has purchased an insurance pelicy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees . Every year , the insurance
company carries out a funding valuation based on the latest emplyee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets
arising as a reult of such valuation is funded by the company
b) Expected contibution during the next annual reporting pericd
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2023 | Year ended 31st March 2022
The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next 286.38 216.66
year
t) Maturity profile of Defined benefit obligation

Particulars

Year ended 31st March 2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

Weighted average duration { based on discounted cash flows}

13 years

13 years

Expected cash flows over the next years (valed on undiscounted
basis)

Year ended 31st March 2023

Year ended 31st March 2022

1vyear 33.51 55.57
2to5years 156.31 120.45
6to 10 years 205.99 195.89
More than 10 years 1,490.,51 1,266.16




Notes to Financial Statements

Rsin Lakhs
35 Defined benefit plan
35.2 Defined benefit plan -Leave
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2023 Year ended 31st
March 2022
Leave encashment Leave encashment
Unfunded Unfunded
A Components of Employer Expenses
1 Current Service Cost 11.42 25.36
2 Past service Cost e =
3 Loss/[(Gain) on settlement - -
4 Net interest income/{cost) an the net defined benefit liability 9.04 7.38
{Asset)
5 change in demographic assumptions
6 Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due to Change in financial assumption 1.55 (6.44)
7 Actuarial (gains)/ Losses due to Change in experience variance 17.38 31.36
8 Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 39.39 57.66
B Net asset/(iiability) recognised in balance sheet as at 31st
March 2022
1 Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 130.07 123.76
2 Fair value of plan assets - -
3 Funded Status [Surplus/(deficit}] (130.07) (123.76)
4 Net asset/{liability) recognised in balance sheet {130.07) (123.76)
o Change in Defined Benefit Obligation during the year ended
31st March 2022
1 Present value of DBO at beginning of period 123.76 106.75
2 Current Service Cost 11.42 25.36
3 Interest Cost 9.03 7.37
4 Re-measurement (or actuarial){gain)/loss arising from - -
-Change in demographic assumptions - =
-Change in financial assumptions 1.55 (6.44)
-Experience variation (i.e Actual experioence vs assumptions) 17.38 31.36
5 Past Service cost - -
6 Benefits Paid (33.07) {(40.64)
7 Acquisition adjustment o
8 Effect of business combinations or disposals -
7 Present value of DBO at the end of period 130.07 123.76
D Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 Fair value of Planned assets at beginning of period - -
2 Investment income = =
3 Employer's contribution 33.07 40.64
4 Benefits paid (33.07) {40.64)




Notes to Financial §

36 Fair Value Measurement

a) Fipancial Instruments by category Rsin Lakhs
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amortised Cost | FVIOCI |  AtCost Amortised Cost | FVTOCI | At Cost
Einancial Assets
[nvestment in Equity shares (Quoted) - 36.06 - =
Investment in Equity shares (Unquoted) - 215.90 - -
[nvestment in Equity shares (Unquoted)-Deemed cost = = -
Investment in Preference Shares (Ungquoted) 16.33 - = 16.33
Investment in Debentures {Ungquoted} 425.00 - - 425.00
Trade Receivables 5,966.31 - - 4,969,37
Loans and Advances 46,506.58 - - 19,431.35
Other Financial Assets 1,221.16 - - 1,046.80
Cash and Cash Equivalents 771.56 = - 581.35
Borrowings{including interest accrued) 71,572.86 - - 43,939.68
Trade Payables 5,101.91 - - 2,612.74
b) Fair Value Hierarchy
. Fair Value
Particulars - Asat Asat
Hierarchy

Financial Assets 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

Investment in Equity Share[Quoted) Level 1 36.06 44.98

Investment in Equity Share(Unquoted) Level 2 21590 215.89

(0

The fair value of financial assets & liabilities is classified in various fair value hierarchy based on following three levels:-

Level 1: Quoted prices funadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (ie. derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active mariet is determined using
market approach and valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates,

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value of the firancial assets and liabilitles {5 included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated sale.

Based on the evaluation of Trade Receivables, allowances are considered to account for the expected losses of these receivables. As at end
of each reporting year, the carrying amount of such receivables , net of allowances [if any) , are not materially different from their
calculated Fair values.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

When the fair value of unquoted instruments cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, the group carries such instruments at cost
tess impairment, if applicable.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost :

The Company uses Discounted Cash Flow Valuation Techinique which involves determination of present value of expected receipt
discounted using appropriate discounting rate.

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Carying Value | Fair Value Carying Value | Fair Value

Financial Assets

Investment in Preference Shares (Unquoted} 16.33 16.33 16.33 16.33
Investment in Debentures {(Unguoted) 425.00 425.00 425.00 425.00
Security Deposit 1,209.97 1,209.97 1,005.63 1,005.63
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings(inciuding interest accrued) 71,572.86 71,572.86 43,939.68 43,939.68

The Management has assessed that the Fair Value of other financial assets and liabilities (fixed depesits, short term leans and advances
and other current liabilities) approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short term nature of these instruments. Fair value of
non-current financial instruments (other than above) approximates to their carrying value which is based on effective interest rate.
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(4)

(B)

Financial risk management

The company’s activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order to minimise any advers
effects on the financial performance of the company, the company has risk management policies as described below

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss arising from default / failure by the counterparty to meet financis
obligations as per the terms of contract. The company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and casl
equivalents, financial guarantees. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentratiol
of credit risks. Credit risk on receivables is minimum since sales through different mode are made after judgin
credit worthiness of the customers or advance payment . The history of defaults has been minimal and outstandin;
receivables are regularly monitored. For credit risk on the Ioans to parties, the company is not expecting am
material risk on account of non-performance by any of the parties.The company creates allowances for all unsecure:
receivables and advances based on lifetime expected credit loss . The company has written off the Expected credi
loss amounting to NIL (PY:Rs. 1218.76 Lakh) in current year.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the company fails to honour its financial obligations in accordance with terms o
contract. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due anc
to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position and cast
and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, the company's liquidity management policy
involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance
sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

The Company does not have any derivative financial liability.The following are the remaining contractual maturities
of non derivative financial liabilities at the reporting period:

Year ended 31.3.2023

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years | More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 24,235.55 47,066.16 - 71,301.71
Interest on borrowings 271.16 - - 271.16
Trade Payables 5,101.91 - - 510191
Employee Benefits Payable 30142 - - 301.42
Other Liabilities 173.57 - - 173.57
Total 30,083.61 47,066.16 - 77,149.77
Year ended 31.3.2022

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Less than 1 year 1toSyears | Morethan 5 years Total
Borrowings 6,424.23 37,432.76 - 43,856.99
Interest on borrowings 82.69 - - 82.69
Trade Payables 2,612.74 - - 2,612.74
Employee Benefits Payable 29243 - - 29243
Other Liabilities 358.60 - - 358.60
Total 9,769.81 37,432.76 - 47,203.45
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418

Since the company operates only in one segment L.e retailing and also in one country i.e India, hence
information on segment reperting with respect to operating and geographical segment is not provided .

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary .

Financing disclosure

A) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed furds or share premium or any other sources or other kind of funds) to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Group (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultitnate Bereficiaries.

B) The Group has not received any funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) from any person or entity, including foreign entity
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

Relationship with Struck off Companies The Group do not have any transactions with company's struck off during the current and previous financial

year.

Disclosure in relation to undisclosed income
The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sumendered

or disclosed as income during the current and previous financial year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax

Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

Detafls of Benami Property held
The Group does not have any Benami property. Further, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the

Group for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules

made thereunder.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)
The Group do net have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with RQG beyond the statutcry period
as at March 3%, 2023,

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Group have not traded or invested in Grypte currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous
financial year.

Disclosure for no wilful default
The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or govemment or any
government authority.

Significant accounting polices
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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